
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Communities 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
14 March 2019 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a SPECIAL MEETING of the COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE to be held at 10.00 am on WEDNESDAY, 20 MARCH 2019 in 
CONFERENCE ROOMS 1 & 2, LLANGOLLEN INTERNATIONAL PAVILION, ABBEY 
ROAD, LLANGOLLEN, LL20 8SW. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

3 REVIEW OF THE SUMMER 2018 LLANTYSILIO MOUNTAIN FIRE  (Pages 
5 - 102) 

 SESSION 1 
 

a) To review the evidence received in relation to the response to the 
mountain fire (report and statements attached) for the purpose of 
exploring if multi-agency responses to similar incidents in future can be 
improved  

 
10am – 1pm 

 
 

Break for lunch 
 
 

SESSION 2 
 

b) To review the evidence received in relation to the fire’s impact on the 
local area, environment and businesses (report and statements 
attached) and explore whether future land management practices 
could be better utilised to mitigate against the spread of fires, or to 
effectively isolate them  

 
1.45pm – 4.30pm 

 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Councillor Huw Williams (Chair) 
 

Councillor Graham Timms (Vice-Chair) 

Brian Blakeley 
Meirick Davies 
Rachel Flynn 
Tina Jones 
Merfyn Parry 
 

Anton Sampson 
Glenn Swingler 
Andrew Thomas 
Cheryl Williams 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais 
ar gyfer caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y 
cwmni sydd wedi gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol'.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 4



Report to:   Communities Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  20 March 2019 
 
Lead Officer:  Corporate Director:  Economic and Community Ambition 
 
Report Author:  Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Title:    Review of the Summer 2018 Llantysilio Mountain Fire  
 
 

 
 
1. What is the report about? 

  
To outline the purpose of the meeting and the anticipated objectives of holding the 
review. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  
2.1 To brief the Committee on the background to the review; and 
 
2.2 outline the process that will be followed in undertaking the review. 
 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
That the Committee reviews: 

3.1 the response to the fire and lessons learnt from it; and  

3.2 land management issues arising from the Llantysilio Mountain fire for a forthcoming 
report and recommendations by the Committee. 

 
4. Report details 

  
Background 

4.1 The summer of 2018 was an exceptionally dry summer.  During this prolonged period 
of dry weather a number of wildfires ignited in various part of the UK.  One such fire 
ignited on an area of Llantysilio Mountain, near Llangollen, on or about 18th July 
2018.  This fire continued to burn on and off until 25th September 2018.  Between 
approximately 19th July and 20th August 2018 the daily lives of a number of local 
residents were affected as were local businesses, and those who had grazing rights 
on the mountain.  The livelihood of the latter group may be affected for a prolonged 
period of time. 

 
4.2 The moorland on Llantysilio Mountain has an extensive peat base, this contributed 

towards the protracted nature of the fire.  An area of mountain, which has a Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) designation, of approximately 290 hectares (circa 
700 acres) was damaged by the fire.  A map outlining the approximate area affected 
by the fire is attached at Appendix 1 for information.  Due to the difficult nature of the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



terrain and SSSI designation a number of public agencies were involved with the fire 
incident and the recovery work on the mountain.  The recovery work is continuing 
and will continue for a number of years.   

 
4.3 As the response to the fire involved a number of public agencies and other 

organisations the North Wales Local Resilience Forum (NWLRF) held an incident 
debrief meeting on 14th November 2018.  A copy of the report from that meeting, 
which outlines what worked well and areas that require improvement for similar 
incidents in future, is attached at Appendix 2 for information. 

 
4.4 Following the fire a number of county councillors representing the local area were of 

the view that particular aspects of the incident merited detailed examination, these 
being the: 
 (i)  fire incident and the multi-agency response to it; and  
 (ii)  fire’s impact on the local area, environment and businesses 

  
 Local councillors’ views were shared by other county councillors who felt that it would 

be beneficial to review the above areas in order to see if lessons could be learnt from 
the response and management of the incident to help: 

(i) devise practical solutions that may be used to improve multi-agency 
responses to similar emergencies in future; and  

(ii) establish whether land management practices could be better utilised to 
mitigate against the spread of fires, or to isolate fires in future. 

Hence the reason for convening the current meeting to which a range of stakeholders 
and organisations have been invited to attend. 
 
The review and how it will be conducted 

4.5 It is important to emphasise that the purpose of the review is not to apportion blame 
on any individual, service, organisation or group with respect of the fire or the 
response to it, but to better understand and learn from the event to help improve the 
response and management of similar incidents in future. 

 
4.6 The purpose of the current meeting is to receive and exchange information from a 

wide-range of agencies, organisations and other stakeholders involved with the fire 
incident and those affected by it, as well as to hear from those agencies, 
organisations and individuals involved with the management and the grazing of the 
mountain.   

 
4.7 The Committee will sit in two sessions.  A brief outline of the contents of both 

sessions is provided below: 
 
 Session 1:  Review of the response to the fire and lessons learnt from it: 
 during this session the Committee will consider statements from the following 

agencies, organisations or their representatives on their involvement with the 
incidents: 

(i) North Wales Regional Emergency Planning Service (Appendix 3(a)) 
(ii) Natural Resources Wales     (Appendix 3(b)) 
(iii) North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWFRS) (Appendix 3(c)) 
(iv) North Wales Police    (no written statement received) 
(v) Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Services (Appendix 3(d)) 

Page 6



(vi) Denbighshire County Council’s Public Protection Service (Appendix 3(e)) 
(vii) Denbighshire County Council’s Highways Service (Appendix 3(f)) 
(viii) Denbighshire County Council’s Customers, Communication & Marketing 

Service       (Appendix 3(g)) 
(ix) Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association   (Appendix 3(h)) 
(x) Llantysilio Estate      (Appendix 3(i)) 
(xi) Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water     (Appendix 3(j)) 
(xii) Hafren Dyfrdwy      (Appendix 3(k)) 
(xiii) Llantysilio Community Council    (Appendix 3(l))  

 
 Session 2:  Review of land management arrangements:  during this session the 

Committee consider statements from the following agencies, organisations or their 
representatives on their involvement with the land management of the mountain: 

 
(i) Natural Resources Wales     (Appendix 4(a)) 
(ii) Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Services (Appendix 4(b)) 
(iii) Llantysilio Estate (Mr Tate)    (Appendix 4(c)) 
(iv) Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association  (included in Appendix 3(h)) 
(v) Llantysilio Community Council    (Appendix 4(d)) 
(vi) North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (if NWFRS feels it is appropriate for it 

to contribute to this session – see Appendix 3(c)) 

 All of the above named organisations were invited to provide short written statements 
regarding their involvement with one and/or both of the aspects under review.  The 
written statements received are attached at appendices 3(a) to 3(l) and 4(a) to 4(d). 

   
4.8 Each agency, organisation or representative, including those who have not submitted 

written statements will be given a maximum of 5 minutes each to present their 
summaries and following each presentation the Committee will ask questions of the 
representatives.  Organisations will be requested to provide full, written responses 
after the meeting to any questions raised at the meeting which cannot be answered 
adequately by the representative(s) present.  

4.9 Once the Committee has concluded its questions, time permitting, members of the 
public in attendance, who have informed the Council in advance of their wish to 
address the committee in relation to either the fire incident or land management 
matters, will be invited to do so prior to the end of the relevant session.  Members of 
the public who wish to address the meeting will be permitted a maximum of 3 minutes 
to put their points across.  Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Co-ordinator at Denbighshire 
County Council is the contact for members of the public to register requests by 12 
noon on 19 March 2019 to address the meeting.  Telephone number:  01824 712554 
or e-mail.  rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

 
4.10 Provision will be made on the day to enable anyone in attendance at the meeting to 

write down a question they feel relevant. That question will be forwarded to the 
relevant organisation(s) and their subsequent response will be carefully considered 
by the Committee along with all other relevant information.  

4.11 As the purpose of this meeting is to facilitate an exchange of information and a public 
discussion of the incident and future land management issues, no formal conclusions 
or recommendations will be drawn up at the end of meeting itself.  All the information 

Page 7

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


received will be collated, and any questions or information which cannot be answered 
or provided at the meeting, will be requested in writing from the relevant party and will 
be included as part of the overall evidence which the Committee will consider when 
preparing its findings and conclusions, and when drafting its report. 

 
4.12 The Committee’s conclusions and any recommendations will be published at a later 

date following consultation on accuracy with the participating organisations. 
 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
  

Examining issues relating to the fire incident and land management in the area and 
learning lessons in relation to them will support the Council to deliver its Environment 
and Resilient Communities corporate priorities.  

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
  

The costs of undertaking this review are mainly connected to officer time. Any other 
costs will be met from existing budgets within the Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
budget. 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  
 
 Not applicable 
 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

  
The review itself constitutes a consultation process with all stakeholders involved in 
the fire incident and/or engaged in the management of the mountain with a view to 
learning lessons which will improve multi-agency responses to similar incidents in 
future, help mitigate against incidents developing into major events and causing 
extensive damage. 
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
  
Not applicable. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

By reviewing the action taken in response to the fire, as well as land management 
practices in the area, and learning lessons from them the aim is to ensure responses 
to similar incidents in future are as effective as possible, and that all possible action 
is taken on a regular basis to avoid similar incidents occurring and developing into 
major events that can potentially pose a risk life, property and businesses, and scar 
the landscape.  
 

11. Power to make the Decision 
 
11.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000  
 

Page 8



11.2 Section 7.4.1 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that in relation to policy 
development and review that Scrutiny “may liaise with other external organisations 
operating in the area, whether national, regional or local, to ensure that the interest of 
local people are enhanced by collaborative working” whilst Section 7.4.2(e) states 
that Scrutiny may “review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the 
area and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the Scrutiny 
Committee and local people about their activities and performance.”  
 
Contact Officer: 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
Tel:  01824 712554 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 

STRUCTURED DEBRIEF REPORT 

Debrief commissioned by: North Wales Resilience Forum 

Event: Llantysilio Wildfire 

Date of Event: 19th of July 2018 – 25th September 2018 

Date of Debrief: 14th of November 2018 

Debrief Location: North Wales Police Headquarters, Colwyn Bay 

Debrief Team: 
Colm McNelis, North Wales Police , Aled Meredith,  North Wales Councils Regional Emergency 
Planning Service 

Debrief Participants: 

1-David Shiel, Denbighshire County Council

2-Liz Grieve, Denbighshire County Council

3- Bethan Beech, Natural Resources Wales

4- Nick Thomas, Natural Resources Wales

5-Tony Jones, North Wales Fire and Rescue Service

6-Stuart Millington, North Wales Fire and Rescue Service

7-Julian Templeton, North Wales Councils Regional Emergency Planning Service

8-Tim Towers, Denbighshire County Council

P
age 13



 

Page 2 of 7 

9 -Gwyn Rowlands,  The Horseshoe Pass Graziers’ Association (by Questionnaire ) 

10 - Paul Joyce, North Wales Police (By Questionnaire) 

Debrief Summary: 

This debrief concerned the Llantysilio mountain fire that occurred near Llangollen, North Wales between 19th July and 25th September 
2018. 

All participants were given a number for ease of cross referencing comments 

The report focuses on areas for improvement and perceptions of what went well; it concludes with a series of recommendations to assist 
agencies to improve the planning and management of similar future events.  The report does not include or comment upon matters 
identified in other debriefs or post-incident reports. 

ITEM IDENTIFIED BY 
REC. 
No. 

Comments 

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 

Mobilisation and Welfare 

A number of areas had been considered internally 
by including management of command logs and 
communication. Welfare facilities for staff became 
an issue when the Ponderosa Café was closed. 
Specialist skills such as off road drivers were 
deployed and demands on them were excessive 
at times. A review of the fleet and suitability of 
vehicles is to be undertaken. 

6 1 
These issues were highlighted in an internal and 
constructive debrief by NWFRS and will inform the 
response to future events of this nature. They are 
primarily single agency in nature but there was 
crossover in some aspects hence their being 
summarised here. 

Command, Control and Communications 

P
age 14



Page 3 of 7 

There was no Tactical Coordination group called 
during this incident. This caused mixed 
communications and agencies had to keep calling 
for updates and clarification of situations as 
sometimes information was contradictory. 

2,3,5,7,9,10 1, 6 

This was the key issued identified by multiple 
participants but it was also acknowledged that the fire 
was thought to be under control in the early stages and 
it was not expected to last for the eventual 68 day 
period. 

During the incident there was no multi-agency 
proactive media strategy put in place and this 
lead to mixed messages with the public. There 
were media releases but these tended to be 
reactive. It was agreed that in future it would be in 
the interests of all if there was one agreed 
message updated on an ongoing basis. 

2,3,5,7,9,10 1 

NWFRS did keep local residents informed and there 
was communications with Local Councillors but there 
was a lot of misinformation spread on social media that 
was ill informed and based on hearsay. 

During the incident the access to land was not 
closed to the public. Decision on whether land 
can be closed to the public is down to the Fire 
Risk Index based on Met Office Data. On the 
1.8.18 Index this was stating Index showing not 
dry enough to close access to land.  The data 
and rules applicable did not support the 
experience of what was being experienced at 
scene. 

3 5 
NRW to discuss review of the Index with the other UK 
Agencies (Natural England and SNH) as well as Welsh 
Government. 

It was identified during the incident that not all 
agencies reported to the NWFRS incident 
command unit to receive a safety briefing, or to 
inform when leaving the incident. 

6, 3, 4 4 

It was acknowledged that the Fire Service needed to 
know who was working on site and that they had been 
accounted for safely prior to departure. Gateway control 
and a tally system is important in the control of 
personnel. 

As this incident lasted more than a few days, staff 
would change on a daily basis which meant 
relationships that were formed were lost and 
people waiting on an update were forgotten so 
lines of communication were hard at times. 

6,1,3 1, 2 
A TCG process may have assisted in continuity of 
information sharing. 

P
age 15



Page 4 of 7 

It was identified that recovery discussions did not 
take place till towards the end of the incident. 
This could have been commenced during the 
response phase. 

2 1 

It was identified that during the incident there was 
no clear message whether the smoke was a risk 
to the public. 

2,3,4 1 

NWFRS did undertake plume modelling in their Incident 
Control Vehicle and were directly engaged with persons 
who may have been affected. Consideration of 
engagement of Public Health Wales as a partner in the 
TCG process may have mitigated concerns in this area 
and assisted in the wider public and responder 
reassurance. 

During the event there was a public funding page 
to provide food and water to the staff at the 
incident. This was done without any request from 
the Service or from our partners. Once this was 
identified, NWFRS informed the public to donate 
any money to the firefighters charity. 

5,6 

1 

Unsolicited donations of food, drink and even a social 
media appeal for money presents a challenge to 
responders. Although well intentioned it is difficult to 
manage unsolicited activities. 

Interoperability 

P
age 16



Page 5 of 7 

The management of the land in the area is a 
challenge due to the number of land owners and 
the changes in demography of the farming 
community in the last 20 years. There are fewer 
graziers and although DCC and NRW have tried 
to encourage more active land management this 
has not proved entirely successful. There has 
been skills fade in some areas. The effect has 
been that a fire was more likely to have a greater 
impact than previously. 

Land ownership in the area of the fire is 
complicated and there were 3 or 4 parties 
involved including Llantysilio Estate. It was further 
complicated by the SSSI status of the area which 
is a European level instrument that influences 
and limits land management. (BB removed and 
limits) 

1,3,4,8 1 

It was identified that landowners and graziers should 
have been contacted at an earlier stage to be involved 
in the management of the incident. 

A more structured communication is needed for 
engagement with graziers. It was the view of most 
participants in the debrief that there is a risk in other 
areas of North Wales and elsewhere of more damaging 
wildfires for the reasons outlined. 

A meeting is planned for 4th December that may assist 
in building relationships in this regard. 

Resources 

A lack of understanding of what resources and 
specialist knowledge each agency had which could 
have been used during the incident. For example 
firefighting equipment is held by NRW / DCC. DCC 
also pointed out that there is a very limited capacity 
within the Council to staff road closures in the 
Summer period compared to winter. 

1,5,8,9 1, 2 

A TCG would have supported discussion amongst 
partners to include equipment and resources. 

P
age 17



Page 6 of 7 

RECOGNISED GOOD PRACTICE 
REC. 
No. 

Collaboration of all agencies at the scene was successful. Three organisations worked together over a protracted period. 

Once in touch with incident commander and other staff, updates were usually comprehensive, helpful and assisted Local 
Authority response. 

Denbighshire County Councils welfare and humanitarian team responded quickly to mobilise a rest centre and have staff on 
standby if needed. A local care home was identified as a higher quality location to use. 

Regular JESIP meetings with key partners with agreed actions and a shared situational awareness was achieved at the 
operational level. 

Use of the NWP drone which was used to gather invaluable information and understanding of the incident scale and progress of 
operations. 

Provision of water supplies utilising water bowsers provided by water ultilities as the result of the water company’s automatic 
emergency cut off system operating was successful in providing sufficient water to the incident ground for the duration of the 
incident. 

Fire Crews worked tirelessly in very difficult terrain and conditions for a prolonged period of time. There was a substantial impact 
on NWFRS whose staff are a mixture of full time and retained. It was acknowledged that they had done their utmost to control 
and extinguish the fire in challenging and exhausting conditions. 

Good communication between NWFRS and DCC to open roads when possible to help with traffic management. NWP provided 
personnel to assist. 

The development of a regional wildfire plan for North Wales 6 

P
age 18



Page 7 of 7 

No. RECOMMENDATIONS OWNER COMMENTS 

1 Convening of a physical or virtual TCG to promote: 

 Multi agency interoperability

 Consistent, proactive and agreed messages to public

 Daily updates from agencies

 Consideration of recovery issues earlier in response phase

 Better understanding of the technical and equipment resources for firefighting
across different organisations.

 Understanding the stresses and impacts on personnel in the primary (NWFRS)
and supporting agencies.

All Any Agency 
can request a 
TCG. 

2 A joint familiarisation session to share knowledge and experience of heathland and 
grassland fires. This will also gain awareness of available resources and equipment of 
agencies across North Wales. 

DCC, NRW, NWFRS, 

3 More structured engagement with graziers and landowners would assist in encouraging 
active land management. Consider using the National Strategic Arson Reduction Board 
(SARB) as a method of achieving wider support and buy in for reduction of wildfire risk. 

DCC, NRW, NWFRS, 
Conservation Land 
Managers, Farmers, 
Graziers. 

4 All agencies to review NWFRS gateway control procedures to ensure safety and for 
the incident command unit to be informed who is present at the scene. 

All agencies 

5 NRW to review Fire Risk Index and assess the information being fed into it. 

Once the index has been reviewed to share with other agencies. 

NRW 

6 Develop a regional wildfire plan for North Wales NRW, NWFRS, LAs 

7 DCC and NRW to consider what further engagement is required to address concerns 
of Local Councillors and business interests that were affected during the response 
phase. 

DCC, NRW 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Appendix 3(a) 

 

 

 

 

Date  01st February 2019 

Title   Report to the special meeting of the Communities 

Scrutiny Committee, 20 March 2019  

Purpose  For consideration 

Author   Neil Culff, Regional Emergency Planning Manager 

 

  

Page 21



2 
 

1.0 Background 

This report provides an overview of the Denbighshire County Council response to the 

Llantysilio Mountain fire of summer 2018, from the perspective of the North Wales Councils 

Regional Emergency Planning Service (NWC-REPS).   

NWC-REPS, hosted by Flintshire County Council, provides an initial point of contact for 

partner agencies (both in hours and out of hours via the Duty Emergency Planning Officer) to 

initiate the Denbighshire County Council response to major incidents and emergencies, and 

is also part of the Councils internal escalation processes. 

The DCC Duty Gold is a strategic-level role that assists in managing incidents and has the 

ability to make strategic decisions on resource allocation and ensuring the appropriate levels 

of the organisation are activated to support the response. This role oversees the corporate 

response and can initiate one or more of several groups to deliver the Council response, as 

illustrated in the diagram below, depending on the nature of the incident. 

DCC Emergency Management response structure. 

 

2.0 Incident Response 

Below is a summary of the key NWC-REPS activities in relation to this incident.  Further 

analysis is provided in Section 3.0. 

26.07.2018: - Email notification of incident via DCC Duty Gold in reference to NWFRS request 

for operational support in the form of JCB provision.  No specific action required from NWC-

Page 22



3 
 

REPS and no specific confirmation that an evacuation was required.  No indication given of 

liaison with residents. 

27.07.2018, commencing 20:00: - Notification received by NWC-REPS Duty Emergency 

Planning Officer from North Wales Police, informing that the grassfire on Llantysilio Mountain 

advancing toward properties.  NWP Confirmed that residents of 4 properties had been spoken 

with, 4 remained to be engaged.  All residents reported in place at this time.  The NWC-REPS 

Duty Emergency Planning Officer was requested to establish a Rest Centre in preparation for 

any potential evacuation.  This was actioned in liaison with the DCC Duty Gold officer.  

Ongoing liaison between NWC-REPS Duty Emergency Planning Officer, DCC Duty Gold 

officer, North Wales Police (NWP) and North Wales Fire & Rescue Service (NWFRS) took 

place over the course of the evening. 

Cysgod-y-Gaer, a Denbighshire County Council-run Residential Care Home located in 

Corwen, was established as the Rest Centre location for this incident.  NWP were advised of 

this.  The Rest Centre was not utilised as no evacuation took place.  NWP did advise the Duty 

Emergency Planning Officer that of the 12 residents living in properties at risk, upon an 

evacuation, 6 would require accommodating at the Rest Centre and the other 6 had access to 

alternative arrangements. 

28.07.2018: - Ongoing liaison between Duty Emergency Planning Officer, Duty Gold and 

NWFRS.  This indicated that 10 properties were potentially at risk from the fire but weather 

conditions and fire break (in the form of a road) were favourable.  Confirmation made that 

NWP were visiting properties and engaging with residents. The Rest Centre was not used but 

arrangements retained in a state of readiness. 

29.07.2018: - Report from NWFRS to Duty Emergency Planning Officer that no properties now 

at risk from the fire.  Agreement reached at 12:53 to stand Rest Centre arrangements down 

but advised to maintain a state of alert in the event that situation changes.  DCC Duty Gold 

agreed to inform Senior Leadership Team and Councillors of position. 

30.07.2018: - No specific actions required of the Duty Emergency Planning Officer, following 

enquiries with North Wales Fire & Rescue Service. 

01.08.2018: - Internal discussion in relation to re-opening roads that had been closed in 

response to the fire. Direct liaison between NWFRS Incident Commander and DCC Highways 

facilitated.  Following a telephone call between NWC-REPS Duty Officer and NWFRS Incident 

Commander, NWC-REPS Duty Officer log suggests that NWFRS were considering the 

establishment of a Tactical Coordinating Group (TCG) in order to update all partners.  This did 

not formally form. 

Page 23



4 
 

At this point, NWC-REPS involvement in the incident response ceased. 

 

3.0 Post Incident activity 

Following the conclusion of this incident, Denbighshire County Council held an internal debrief, 

attended by but the Duty Emergency Planning Officer, to ensure any issues encountered 

during the response were identified and could be used to contribute to organisational learning.  

This took place on 05.09.2018 (notes of which are appended). 

By October 2018, no arrangements for a multi-agency debrief of this incident were in place.  

Due to the multi-agency issues that had been raised in the internal Denbighshire County 

Council debrief, NWC-REPS submitted a request to North Wales Local Resilience Forum for 

a multi-agency debrief to be held.  The request was submitted on 10.10.2018 and officers of 

the Council attended a multi-agency debrief on 14.11.2018. 

 

4.0 Conclusion 

The response of DCC to this incident was timely, appropriate and proportionate.  Several staff 

from a range of departments and roles were involved over several days by linking in with 

professional partners to support their requests in managing this event.  Appropriate post-

incident activities were undertaken in the form of an internal debrief and contributing to the 

multi-agency debrief. 

 

  

Page 24



5 
 

Appendix 1 – notes of Denbighshire County Council internal debrief. 

 

LLANTYSILIO DEBRIEF MEETING  

WEDNESDAY 5TH SEPTEMBER 2018 

10.00 a.m. Social Services Office, County Hall 

 

Minutes 

Present  

Nicola Stubbins  (NS) (Chair)                      Corporate Director Communities 

Davie Shiel (DS) Senior Countryside Officer 

Cllr Martyn Holland (MH)  

Cllr Melvyn Mile (MM)  

Tim Towers (TT) Section Manager – Network Management 

Tony Ward  (TW) Head of Highways and Environmental Services 

Phil Gilroy  (PG) Head of Community Support Services 

Liz Grieve  (LG) Head of Customers, Communications and Marketing 

Julian Templeton  (JT) Emergency Planning Officer 

Andy Clark  (AC) Works Unit Manager 

Jon Chapman  (JT) Area Coordinator 

 

 

Item Discussion  Action 

1 Welcome and Introductions   
NS welcomed everyone to the meeting.  The purpose of the debrief meeting was to 
capture issues and any questions so as to assist our partners and to learn lessons from 
this event. 
 

 

2 Roles during the incident 
Officers gave a summary of their role in the event. 
Action:  Officers  and both local members  to write a summary of their role during this 
event and send to JT 
 
 

 
 
 

All 

3 What aspects of the response did not go well? 
Key issues raised: 

1. Current position / situation from NWF&RS – Assurance 
2. An emergency was not called by NWF&RS – Should it have been declared as an 

emergency / major incident? 
3. Is there a chronology of events? 
4. Why were the specific details of properties not shared? Vulnerable people 

information could have been shared. 
5. Did the blue light services have sufficient resources – particularly given the time 

of year (holiday season)? 

 

Page 25



6 
 

6. Why was a multi-agency TCG not called? Who considered this and why was is not 
called? 

7. Do we know how this fire started? Is it being investigated? 
8. Whose responsibility is it for fire breaks? – in different contexts. 
9. Are all water hydrants clearly marked? 

 
 

 
4 

What aspects of the response went well?  And should be highlighted as good practice 
for the future 

 Communication between DCC staff were in place should the residents have had 
to be evacuated from their homes to a rest centre. 

 
 

 

5 Key recommendations for if a similar event happened again 

 Formally write to NWFS to request a multi-agency debrief meeting.   
Officers from DCC to be invited to attend the meeting -  David Shiel, Liz Grieve, 
Tim Towers and Julian Templeton 

 DCC to arrange an EMC meeting  

 Gold/Silver officers to meet following this incident to discuss any eventualities 
in the future  

  DCC and Local members to prepare a chronology of events 

 Forest fire/moorland plan to be in place 

 Emergency Planning (Gold Rota) to be shared more widely 
 

 

6 Any other business 
Llantysilio Mountain Fire  to be an agenda item at Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group, 
Thursday, 6 September 2018, 2.00 pm 

 

 

 

Page 26



Tŷ Cambria      29 Heol Casnewydd      Caerdydd       CF24 0TP 

Cambria House      29 Newport Road       Cardiff       CF24 0TP 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg 
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English 

       Appendix 3(b) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 
 
 

Denbighshire Scrutiny Committee 20.3.19. Morning Session.  
Evidence from Natural Resources Wales (NRW).   
NRW role in the fire on Mynydd Llantysilio in July and August 2018.  

 
 

1. Background.  

Mynydd Llantysilio is part of the Ruabon/Llantysilio Mountains and Minera Grasslands Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)  that was notified as an SSSI in 1991.   The designation as an 
SSSI recognises the National (UK) importance of the upland heath and blanket bog communities 
found on the mountain along with an assemblage of upland breeding birds including species such 
as red grouse, black grouse and curlew. 
  
The majority of the SSSI is also part of the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC).  This European designation highlights the European importance of the 
heathland habitats found on Mynydd Llantysilio.  All of the land is within the AONB.  
 
Mynydd LLantysilio is a series of contiguous registered Common Land Units. The freehold is 
owned by four main landowners with a series of smaller landowners around the periphery of the 
mountain.  (Annex 1  Map showing the boundary of the SSSI on Mynydd Llantysilio). 
 
Given this area is private land the role of NRW in the fire was as a Category one responder under 
the Civil Contingencies Act and also in our role as the Nature Conservation Authority in Wales in 
relation to SSSIs. 
“We are a Category One Responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, giving us an 
important legal responsibility to respond directly to incidents and to support the incident 
management roles of other organisations such as the emergency services, health boards and local 
authorities by providing advice and information.” (NRW Incident Management Enabling Plan 2015-
2020) 
 

2. Timeline for NRW response. 

Please See Annex 2  for copies of the relevant internal Situation Reports (SITREPS) from NRW.  
 
NRW provided information and advice to the NWFRS from the outset and worked closely with the 
Denbighshire Countryside Service who were out on site.  
 
NRW provided equipment and skilled operators on request.  These are usually used on the Berwyn 
National Nature Reserve (NNR), which is land owned and managed directly by Natural Resources 
Wales.  The NRW machinery was used on site under the direction of the NWFRS.  
 
 

 

Our ref: SJ 24.1 
Ffordd Gaer/Chester Road  
Bwcle/ Buckley 
Sir y Fflint/ Flintshire 
CH7 3AJ 
Ebost/Email: BethanBeech@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

Ffôn/Phone:  03000 653 3814 
 

Page 27



 
 

  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 2 of 3 

2a Key dates. 
Thursday 19 July 2018.  NRW made aware of the fire on Mynydd Llantysilio. 
 
Friday 20 July 2019. NRW discuss equipment available with NWFRS and Denbighshire 
Countryside Service.  NRW Offer use of off road vehicles. Tracked vehicle not required at this time.  
 
Thursday 26 July. NRW agree with NWFRS that a trench can be dug within the SSSI on the edge 
of a woodland block to protect the forestry and the adjacent properties. (The wind changed 
direction and this was not then dug). 
 
Friday 27 July 2019.  NRW asked to provide machinery and expertise to undertake the mowing of 
fire breaks.  Two men and machinery deployed.  Remain on site for 6 days 
 
Saturday 28 July 2019. Ponderosa café evacuated overnight. 
 
Monday 30 July 2019.  Further NRW tractor and hedge flail deployed to the NWFRS on request. 
Local NRW staff visit the ICU every day up to the 17 August.  
 
Wednesday 1 August 2019 am.  All off road vehicles withdrawn from the site. 
  
Wednesday 1 August 2019 pm.   Meeting of all the agencies at the Incident Command Unit (ICU). 
NWFRS, Denbighshire Countryside Service, Denbighshire Highways, Police, County councillor, 
NRW Operational team, NRW Local team.  
 
NRW requested to withdraw public access the Access Land on Mynydd Llantysilio when the road is 
re-opened.   
 
Thursday 2 August. Main road (A525) re-opens.  NRW unable to support suspension of public 
access “The Fire Severity Index (FSI) has not reached the exceptional level for the area which 
would suspend the right of access for fire prevention (s21 1a).” 
 
Monday 6 August.  Fire smouldering in area of the road in the Horseshoe Pass itself.  NRW would 
have no objection to home owners cutting vegetation in this area. Safety Concerns from NWFRS.  
 
Tuesday 7 August.  Meeting between NRW, Agent for the Llantysilio Estate, Denbighshire 
Countryside Service and the NWFRS to discuss whether any further mowing is required. 
   
Friday 10 August. NWFRS request assistance with further flailing.  NRW equipment not available 
due to annual servicing and main operator on annual leave.  
 
Tuesday 14 August. Contractor for the Estate meet NWFRS and NRW on site, areas contractor 
happy to mow agreed on site. Mowing carried out that evening.  
 
Friday 17 August NWFRS Press release – Fire out.  Still some smouldering on site  
 
Wednesday 5 September.  NRW informed by the NWFRS that the Incident Command unit has 
been removed from the site.  
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
 

  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 3 of 3 

 
3. Estimated costs of NRW involvement in the Llantysilio fire. 

Below is the estimate of the cost of dealing with the fire on Llantysilio mountain to NRW.  This is 
based on staff time, the equipment used and other expenses.  
  

Name of incident Llantysilio Grass Fires 2018 

  

Operations £                       2,408.63  

    

Staff time £                     11,959.20  

    

Travel and expenses £                       1,124.30  

    

Total £                     15,492.13  

 
 
 

4. Final Extent of the Fire 

Please see Annex 3 am for a map showing the estimated area of the fire.  
The area burnt is estimated  by NRW at between 610 and 630 acres  (247-255 ha).   The total area 
of Mynydd Llantysilio up to the A525 is 2842 acres 1150 ha.  This has been drawn up using the 
NRW drone footage and from field mapping.  
 
The most accurate way to measure the extent of the fire will be from the next series of aerial 
photographs when they become available.   
 

5. Lessons Learnt.  

 Fire Risk Index on Access Land.  Index not accurate.  Needs review on a UK level.  

 NRW could have called for the Tactical Command Group (Silver) to aid co-ordination and 

sharing of information with common land graziers, local residents and the public. 

 Joint Familiarisation session for NWFRS with NRW and Local Authorities to improve 

understanding of equipment and expertise available.  

 Work with NWFRS and Local Authorities to develop Fire Plans for high risk sites.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Annex 1. Map Showing the Boundary of the Llantysilio section of the SSSI 
Annex 2. Natural Resources Wales.  Timeline taken from SITREPS and other information.  
Annex 3. Map of Estimated Area of the fire.  

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3b - Annex 1

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(b) Annex 2 

Annex 2. Morning Session. DCC Scrutiny 20.3.19.  

Llantysilio Fire 2018. Natural Resources Wales Timeline.   

The majority of the information in this timeline has been taken from the Natural Resources 

Wales(NRW) Situation Reports (Sitreps)  

Sitreps are produced by the Duty Tactical Manager (DTM), the on duty Incident Manager who will 

lead the internal co-ordination of the NRW response to an Incident.  Sitreps are distributed internally 

to other senior managers within NRW and are also shared with other organisations as deemed 

appropriate by the DTM e.g Welsh Government, Public Health Wales etc. 

19.7.18 (Thursday) Fire reported to NRW via Denbighshire Countryside Service.   WIRS opened.  

19.7.18 Denbighshire Country Council Countryside Service staff and the North Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service (NWFRS) attending on site. Fire on private land. NRW do not attend unless there is a request 

for assistance from the NWFRS.  

Thursday 19.7.19 NRW Sitrep 6pm (18:00)  

       

Executive Summary         

Denbighshire Countryside Service have reported a fire on the southern side of Mynydd Llantysillo.   
North Wales Fire and Rescue Service are in attendance. 
 
This area is within the Mynyddoedd Llantysilio/Ruabon and Minera SSSI and also within the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains 
SAC. 
We will be providing advice to the FRS.  Initial assessment is that any fire runoff is unlikely to cause any pollution issues. 

 

 Friday 20.7.19  NRW Sitrep 16.30  

Executive Summary         

Denbighshire Countryside Service have reported a fire on the southern side of Mynydd Llantysillo.   
North Wales Fire and Rescue Service are in attendance. 
This area is within the Mynyddoedd Llantysilio/Ruabon and Minera SSSI and also within the Berwyn  
and South Clwyd Mountains SAC. 
We will be providing advice to the FRS.  Initial assessment is that any fire runoff is unlikely to  
cause any pollution issues. 

Page 33



New Developments 

North Wales Fire and Rescue Service continue to deal with the fire on Mynydd Llantysillo. There are 7  
appliances in attendance (3 pumps and 4 off road vehicles) with support damping down away from the main  
are being provided by Denbighshire Countryside Services.  NRW has offered the use of an additional  
tracked vehicle to support if required but this is not required at this time. 

 

 

 

Thursday 26.7.19 NRW Sitrep 10 am   

Executive Summary 
Denbighshire Countryside Service reported a fire on the southern side of Mynydd Llantysillo, near Llangollen on Wednesday 18th 
July.  North Wales Fire and Rescue Service have been in attendance since then and several hectares of heathland have been 
burnt. This area is within the Mynyddoedd Llantysilio/Ruabon and Minera SSSI, the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains SAC and 
Clwydian Range AONB.   

New Developments (since previous SITREP) 

Fire appeared to be out on Tuesday 24th, however it re-ignited on Wednesday 25th and a change in wind direction moved the fire 
south towards a forest plantation. A trench is being cut along the boundary of the Common to try to prevent the fire reaching the 
forest. The wind subsequently changed direction again and ignited hot spots to the north resulting in a plume of smoke spreading 
north-eastwards  which was visible 20 miles away.  

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Without significant rain the fire is likely to continue to burn in peat for days if not weeks. The key issue is preventing the fire 
reaching woodland around the mountain. Fire run-off is unlikely to cause any pollution issues. A significant flare-up could have air 
quality issues for Llangollen if the wind blows from the west or north-west. 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service and may occasionally visit site if necessary 

 

 

 

Thursday 26.7.19 NRW Sitrep 4 pm 

Executive Summary 
Denbighshire Countryside Service reported a fire on the southern side of Mynydd Llantysillo, near Llangollen on on Wednesday 
18th July.  North Wales Fire and Rescue Service have been  in attendance since then and 10ha + of heathland have been burnt. 
This area is within the Mynyddoedd Llantysilio/Ruabon and Minera SSSI, the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains SAC and 
Clwydian Range AONB.  The Fire appeared to be out on Tuesday 24th, however it re-ignited on Wednesday 25th and a change in 
wind direction moved the fire south towards a forest plantation.  

New Developments (since previous SITREP) 

The wind has increased and moved to SW today, resulting in the area affected by the fire expanding, pushing the fire across the 
east-west running ridge towards the A542. The burnt area is now estimated to be into the 10’s of hectares. The change in wind 
direction may have saved the forest plantation. 7 fire appliances and 4 off-road appliances are on site. No houses are currently 
threatened, however many of the houses around the mountain rely on spring fed water supplies and there is a risk that these 
may be impacted by the fire 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Without significant rain the fire is likely to continue to burn in peat for days if not weeks. The key issue is preventing the fire 
reaching houses and woodland around the mountain. Currently it appears that the wind is blowing the fire away from woodland  

Page 34



but wind direction is likely to change. Fire run-off is unlikely to cause any pollution issues. A significant flare-up could have air 
quality issues for Llangollen if the wind blows from the west or north-west. 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service and may occasionally visit site if necessary 

 

Friday 27.7.19 NRW Sitrep 10 am  

On Friday morning the wind is blowing from the south sending a plume of smoke across north-east Wales to Merseyside. The 
Horseshoe pass (A542) has been shut as the fire is moving towards it. 7 fire appliances and 4 off-road appliances are on site. No 
houses are currently threatened, however many of the houses around the mountain rely on spring fed water supplies and there is 
a risk that these may be impacted by the fire 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Without significant rain the fire is likely to continue to burn in peat for days if not weeks. The key issue is preventing the fire 
reaching houses and woodland around the mountain. Currently it appears that the wind is blowing the fire away from woodland  
but wind direction is likely to change. Fire run-off is unlikely to cause any pollution issues. WAQTA contacted for advice on air 
quality issues. 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service. We have arranged for NRW moorland fire fighting equipment 
to be sent  to the site  

 

Saturday 28.7.19 NRW Sitrep 10 am 

On Saturday morning cooler temperatures and some overnight rain has dampened the fire down, so it is now smouldering across 
a large area of the Mountain, however strong winds are pushing the smouldering front of the fire on. At least 7 fire appliances 
and 4 off-road appliances are on site. NRW Ops delivery tractor and flail is being used  to cut fire breaks across the Mountain to 
try to prevent the front of the fire spreading. This appears to be having some success. United Utilities have provided a large water  
tanker to help with fire fighting. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

It is hoped that the heavy rain forecast for Sunday will help put the fire out, although the peat may continue to smoulder for 
some weeks The key issue is preventing the fire reaching houses and woodland around the mountain. Fire run-off is unlikely to 
cause any pollution issues.  

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service. 2 Ops Delivery staff will be on site for most of the day 
operating the tractor and will return on Sunday if required. 

 

Sunday 29.7.19 NRW Sitrep 10 am 

On Saturday cooler temperatures and some rain, NRW Ops delivery tractor cutting fire breaks across the Mountain and other fire 
fighting activities initially dampened the fire. Smoke continued to blow across large areas to the north and north-east (eg 
Wrexham and Deeside and beyond). However during Saturday evening and night, high winds whiped the fire up and it spread to 
the A542, resulting in the Ponderosa Café at the top of the Horseshoe Pass being evacuated and Incident Command Centre 
moved. Fortunately heavy rain since 5am Sunday has dampened the fire down and there is much less smoke than on Saturday. 
Reduced number of FRS personnel on site. A542 remains closed. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

The heavy rain on Sunday will help dampen the fire down and cooler temperatures and some rain during the coming week may 
result in it going out, although the peat may continue to smoulder for weeks. There is a risk that if hot weather returns in August 
the fire could re-start, so there may be a need to tackle hot spots over the coming week. 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service. 2 Ops Delivery staff are currently on site ready to operate the 
tractor and flail if needed but this seems unlikely at present. 

 

 

Page 35



 

 

Monday 30.7.19. 10 am  

Heavy rain and cooler temperatures meant that the fire dampened down on Sunday with less smoke. FRS remain concerned 
about fire at three locations – near Ponderosa Café, above Quarry and at another location towards Bryneglwys. NRW Ops delivery 
staff are continuing to cut firebreaks and an additional NRW tractor is being brought to site to assist.  A542 remains closed. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Cooler temperatures, lighter winds and some rain on Monday should help fire fighting, however hotter weather is predicted to 
return from mid-week and this could cause the fire to re-start. FRS focusing on preventing fire spreading east of A542 onto 
Rhiwabon Mountain (3000ha of moorland) and west towards Corwen (where half of Llantsilio mountain remains unburnt). Peat 
could smoulder for weeks and so FRS staff are likely to be present for sometime. 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service. 2 Ops Delivery staff are currently on site with tractor and flail. 
Another NRW tractor with hedge cutter attachment is being brought to site this morning (at request of FRS) to enable steeper 
areas to be cut. 

 

From the  Monday 30 July to Monday the 20 August NRW staff  from the Denbighshire NRM Team 

attended the on site Incident Command Unit every morning to discuss the latest situation and who 

further assistance may be required from NRW.  

Tuesday 31.7.19. 10 am 

Denbighshire Countryside Service reported a fire on the southern side of Mynydd Llantysillo, near Llangollen on Wednesday 18th 
July.  North Wales Fire and Rescue Service have been  in attendance since then and a minimum of 310ha of moorland have been 
burnt. This area is within the Mynyddoedd Llantysilio/Ruabon and Minera SSSI, the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains SAC and 
Clwydian Range AONB.  The  Fire appeared to be out on Tuesday 24th, however it re-ignited on Wednesday 25th and 
approximately  half of the Mountain has now been burnt, resulting in the closure of the Horseshoe Pass Road (A542) and smoke 
spreading across a large area of north-east Wales and Merseyside.  

New Developments (since previous SITREP) 

The situation on Tuesday 31st is much improved with fires mostly out and much less smoke, although some areas are still 
smouldering where the fire is burning in peat. FRS are trying to tackle these hot spots. Two United Utilities tankers have been 
ferrying water to fire appliances since Thursday. NRW Ops delivery staff are continuing to cut firebreaks and an additional NRW 
tractor is flailing vegetation along the A542, in case the fire re-ignites, to prevent it crossing the A542 and getting onto Rhiwabon 
Mountain, a much larger area of moorland, surrounded by forest. The road remains closed from the Ponderosa café at the top of 
the Horseshoe Pass towards Llangollen. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

FRS will be on site Tuesday and Wednesday but are hoping to leave before end of week. With warm dry weather predicted from 
Wednesday, possibly for several weeks, there is a high risk of the fire re-igniting, particularly in strong winds, so FRS will be 
monitoring the Mountain daily for weeks to come. 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service.  Two Ops Delivery tractors are operating – one with flail cutting 
fire breaks on western side of Mountain and one with hedge-cutter attachment cutting along A542.  

 

 

Wednesday 1.8.18 10 am 

Page 36



Whilst fires are out (ie no flames) much  of the Mountain is still smouldering as peat continues to burn underground, with smoke 
wafting around the local area, although much reduced compared to the weekend . FRS are trying to tackle hot spots by digging 
into peat and then spraying water below ground. NRW Ops delivery staff are on site and may continue to cut firebreaks as 
required by FRS. The A542 remains closed from the Ponderosa café at the top of the Horseshoe Pass towards Llangollen. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

With warm dry weather predicted over the coming week, there is a high risk of the fire re-igniting, particularly in strong winds. 
FRS are likely to be on site until the end of the week continuing to tackle hot spots and will need to monitor the situation for 
weeks to come.  

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service.  Two Ops Delivery tractors are on site available to cut fire 
breaks if needed 

 

Wednesday 1 August pm.  Meeting at Incident Command Unit of the Fire and Rescue Service. Police, 

Local Councillor. Denb CC Highways, Denb Countryside Service, NRW Operational Delivery  and Local 

Denbighshire Team of  NRW .  Discussion on the re-opening of the main road.  

 

Thursday 2.8.18  NRW Sitrep 10 am.  

Whilst fires are out (ie no flames) much  of the Mountain is still smouldering as peat continues to burn underground, with smoke 
wafting around the local area, although much reduced compared to the weekend . FRS are trying to tackle hot spots by digging 
into peat and then sparying water below ground. NRW Ops delivery staff are on site and may continue to cut firebreaks as 
required by FRS. The A542 remains closed from the Ponderosa café at the top of the Horseshoe Pass towards Llangollen. 
Update 2/8/18- There is continued pockets of fire and smouldering peat, thermal imaging shows a wide extent of hotspots on 
the mountain.  Due to local business pressure, the FRS are intending to re-open one lane of the road today, 2 August 2018, 
with traffic management in place.  NRW have been requested by the FRS to suspend open access to the mountain under 
CRoW, however this is not possible under the parameters set in the CRoW Act, NRW can only advise people not to access the 
burnt areas and not visit the remainder of the mountain.  With regard to the cutting of fire breaks, due to a FRS Health and 
Safety incident which occurred yesterday, 1 August 2018, all vehicle access has been suspended.  The use of contractors to 
undertake the required work is currently being progressed by Denbighshire LA. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

With warm dry weather predicted over the coming week, there is a high risk of the fire re-igniting, particularly in strong winds. 
FRS are likely to be on site until the end of the week continuing to tackle hot spots and will need to monitor the situation for 
weeks to come.  
Update2/8/18 – Due to continued dry weather further outbreaks of fire are likely 

Operational Response 

NRW staff liaising with FRS and Denbighshire Countryside Service.  Two Ops Delivery tractors are on site  available to cut fire 
breaks if needed 
Update 2/8/18 – NRW will continue to advise on the management of the land whilst reignition is likely.  NRW can support with 
the cutting of fire breaks, however NRW  have requested that the use of specialised contractors for this work is progressed. 

Health & Safety 

Care needs to be taken with tractor on steep ground (double wheels are available for tractor). Staff have appropriate PPE, 
equipment and training. 
Update 2/8/18 – Due to H+S incidents which have occurred to other partner organisations  during this incident, no vehicles are 
currently allowed into the area.  This will be reviewed later today however the use of specialised contractors is also being 
progressed. 

 

 

Thursday 2 August. Further on-site inter agency meeting attended by NRW.  Road re-opens. NRW 

unable to apply for closure to Access Land as Fire Severity Index criteria not met.  

Page 37



Friday 3.8.18. NRW Sitrep. 12.00 Mid day.  

Update3/8/18 – Fire service remain on site as the hill is still smouldering.  The main road re-opened 

yesterday, however the FRS are still concerned about members of the public wandering into areas where 

the ground is still hot. 

 Fire service remain on-site.  A watching brief to be maintained by NRW over weekend, 4+5 August 2018. 

No further help is required from NRW operational team, all equipment has been removed from the area.  

Input is still being provided from the NRM team and contact will be maintained over the weekend. 

Saturday 4 August.   NRW staff visit the ICU. Wind changes direction.  Road Closed Pm. 

Sunday 5 August    NRW staff visit the ICU.  Wind changes direction.  Road Closed Pm. 

Monday 6.8.18. NRW Sitrep 12.00 Mid day.  

Update 6/8/18 – NRM met with the FRS Incident commander this morning and the issue today, 6/8/18, is 

that the fire has restarted and burnt down to the road (A542) in the corner of the horseshoe pass and is very 

close to 3 houses.  The homeowners are wanting to undertake some vegetation management themselves 

however there are safety concerns for this to be undertaken whilst the fire is burning.  NRW would have no 

objections to the actual cutting in these circumstances.  NRM are trying to establish if further mowing is 

required by NRW Ops elsewhere on the mountain. The (A542) has been re-closed. 

Update 6/8/18 – Due to the fire re-igniting and being close to properties  we are currently waiting on further 

updates.  NRM are continuing to input re the SSSI/SAC impact. 

 

Tuesday 7.8.18. NRW Sitrep 12.00 Mid day.  

Update 7/8/18 – The fire is still smouldering throughout the burnt areas, over the last few days the wind is tending to increase  
and change direction in the afternoons blowing from a northerly direction and pushing the fire front towards the road.  The 
main A542 remains closed due to the proximity of the fire to the road.  A meeting is to be held today, 7/8/18 at 14:30 pm 
between the Llantysilio Agent, Denbighshire Countryside Service, NWFRS and NRW to discuss next steps. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Update 7/8/18 – there are currently no requirements on NRW to undertake any further cutting.  The situation is being 
monitored by NWFRS and fire outbreaks dealt with.  NRW continue to offer advice re SSSI/SAC.  NRW will continue to liaise 
with NWFRS and other partner organisations.  Unless there are any further developments, it is not intended to update the 
SITREP until Friday 10/8/18 

Operational Response 

Update 7/8/18 -NRW continue to liaise with NWFRS and partner organisations.  No physical operational response is currently 
required. 

 

 

Tuesday 7 August pm.  Meeting  at the Incident Command Unit of the FRS, Denbighshire Countryside 

Service, Local Denbighshire Team of NRW, Agent for Llantysilio Estate.  

Agreed in principle that the Estate would supply a contractor to undertake further mowing of fire 

breaks if further assistance requested from the FRS.  

Friday 10.8.18. NRW Sitrep 12.00 Mid day. 

Update10/8/18 – FRS continuing their efforts to control fire with 3 appliances on site today following further flareup last night. 
The A542 remains closed due to smoke though rather than proximity of the fire to the road. FRS  applying as much water as 

Page 38



they can to control hotspots. Rain also falling this morning which has helped. FRS hoping to reduce to single appliance later 
today and will continue to maintain a presence over the weekend.  

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Update 10/8/18 –FRS have made requests for additional equipment this morning but flail requested is not available due to 
planned maintenance. We are continuing to offer advice re SSSI/SAC.  NRW will continue to liaise with NWFRS and other 
partner organisations.  Unless there are any further developments, it is not intended to update the SITREP until Monday 
13/8/18. 
 

  

Monday 13.8.18. NRW Sitrep 12.00 Mid day. 

 

Update13/8/18 –Some rain over the weekend has helped to reduce the number of locations on the mountain where 
the fire is still smouldering but the fire continues in the area adjacent to the Horseshoe Pass itself.  Incident 
Commander from FRS today considering what further work is required to create further fire breaks, NRW staff 
continuing to liaise with them on a daily basis. Other than this no NRW presence at the site . 
Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Update 13/8/18 –Further rain forecast this week hoped to further improve the situation. Unless there are any further 
developments, it is not intended to update the SITREP until Friday17/8/18. 
 

 

Tuesday 14 August pm.  Further to request from the FRS on the 13.8.18 NRW arranged a meeting 

with the Agent for the Estate.  NRW , FRS Incident commander and contractor for the Llanstysilio 

Estate at the Incident Command Unit.   FRS advised the contractor where mowing would be 

beneficial.  Contractor decided which locations were suitable based on previous experience and 

equipment.  Mowing carried out that evening.  

Friday 17.8.18. NRW Sitrep 12.00 Mid day. 

Update17/8/18 –An improving situation resulting in FRS are stepping down in their current response. FRS are continuing to 
monitor hotspots across the mountain, however they are not expecting to be present overnight.  Unless the situation changes 
the SITREP will be updated on 20/8/18. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Update 17/8/18 – Improving situation with the fire out and the monitoring of hotspots to ensure there is no reignition.   
 

Operational Response 

Update 17/8/18 -NRW continue to liaise with NWFRS and partner organisations.  No physical operational response is currently 
required. 

 

Friday 17 August Press Release/ BBC news page “Fire out”.  Still some smouldering on site.  

 

Closedown 20/8/18 – Due to a reducing presence on site by Fire and Rescue Service it has been decided to closedown this 
incident.  If any further fires flare up on the mountain then a new SITREP will be circulated. 

Outlook and Predicted Escalation 

Page 39



Closedown 20/8/18 – Fire Service have withdrawn from site with only some crew members walking the mountain to monitor 
for further outbreaks.  Areas are now re-open to members of the public, however they are being encouraged to remain on the 
designated paths. 
 

 

5 September 2018.  FRS inform NRW that ICU has been removed from the site.    

Page 40



© Crown Copyright and database rights Ordnance Survey.Natural Resources Wales, 100019741, 2015. © Hawlfraint y Goron

a hawl cronfa ddata Arolwg Ordnans.Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, 100019741, 2015.This map is a user generated static output

from an Internet mapping site and is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

Llantysilio Mountain Fire Area 090818

0.8 0 0.39 0.8 Kilometers

British_National_Grid

Notes

Legend

1 15,400

P
age 41



P
age 42



Appendix 3(c) 

Wildfire incident at Llantysilio 

Summer 2018 

The initial call for this incident was received at the Joint Communication Centre, St Asaph at 14:20 on the 

19th July 2018, and operations formally came to a close at 13.45 on the 25th September 2018. 

During those 68 days, 328 appliance mobilisations were made along with 135 officer mobilisations.  

Appliances from as far away as Aberdyfi in the South of Gwynedd and Amlwch on the North of Anglesey 

attended. 

The estimated total area burnt was 9 square kilometres. 

Throughout the incident North Wales Fire and Rescue Service regularly liaised with a number of partners 

including: 

 North Wales Police 

 Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust 

 Natural Resources Wales 

 Denbighshire Countryside Service 

 Denbighshire County Council Highways 

 Hafren Dyfrdwy  

 Severn Trent Water 

 

Terrain and access to the vast geography in order to apply water posed a challenge and the dense heath, 

gorse and bracken, with a deep layer of decomposed vegetation beneath, resulted in there being 

significant fuel to propagate fire spread more than 1.5 metres below the surface. 

 

In places, the ground appeared to provide hard standing but in fact the undergrowth covered 

undulations and void spaces in the land, which made driving conditions and access very difficult for all 

vehicles.  In addition, following burning, these areas were obscured by a significant depth of ash, varying 

from a few centimetres in some places, to half a metre in others. 

 

The unpredictable nature of the terrain posed significant health and safety implications for all, both when 

attempting to drive and even when walking around the incident ground. 

Travel on foot to the scene of operations whilst carrying equipment over considerable distances was 

made even more difficult because of the unprecedented hot weather throughout most of the period.  

Some of the other challenges included: 

 

 Water Supplies – initially the hydrant on site was being automatically and remotely turned off due 

to the system interpreting a catastrophic failure of the water main.  This was overcome in 

partnership with the water companies who provided water bowsers 

 

Page 43



 Large volumes of smoke – Smoke levels were very much dependent upon wind direction and 

areas where fires would break through from underground to the surface.  As a result there was a 

need to open and close roads at various times throughout the incident. 

 

 Fire Breaks – Prior to the fire, the area had not benefited from robust land management as a 

result fire breaks were limited.  As the incident developed, offers of help to cut fire breaks were 

balanced against the hazards and risks that presented on site.  Where fire breaks were cut they 

were done as part of a planned approach and with the approval of Natural Resources Wales. 

 

 Equipment – It was difficult to get vehicles to the far extremities of the site due to unsafe terrain 

and crumbling tracks.  The Service did suffer damage to appliances whilst attempting to firefight 

in these areas.  This resulted in all firefighting activities requiring to be carried out on foot and 

whilst manually carrying the equipment necessary to do so.  It is not to be underestimated how 

much physical effort was required to do this and NWFRS crews are to be commended for their 

efforts. 

 

 Relief of crews – The predominant number of firefighters in North Wales operate on an ‘on call’ 

basis.  They usually have primary employment and employers across the region were very 

understanding of the need for these crew members to be away from their workplaces in order to 

fight wildfires.  However, others did need to be relieved in order to attend primary employment 

and this coupled with the need to replace those who had been working hard for many hours 

presented challenges because of the protracted nature of this particular incident. 

 

 Media messages – There was a significant amount of incorrect information reported in the media 

and this only added to the frustrations that were presented by the local communities.  There was 

a joined up approach taken to communication with regular contact between the press offices 

from NWFRS, NRW and Denbighshire county council, but the perspective presented, particularly 

in print media was unhelpful. 

 

Both an internal and external debriefs were undertaken following this incident and a number of areas of 

both single agency and multi-agency learning recommendations have been identified.  From a NWFRS 

single agency perspective the six main areas of focus for our internal learning in relation to all wildfires 

across the summer period include: 

 

 Incident command and control and the need for consistency across all levels of command; 

 Command support and the need for systems to be standardised so as to better support the 

decision making of the incident commander; 

 Resources, in particular vehicles, and the need to review their capability/capacity to support and 

enable the effective resolution of wildfires; 

 The need to provide suitable and sufficient welfare facilities for staff during protracted incidents; 

 The benefits of joint working and the application of the Joint Emergency Service Interoperability 

Principles (JESIP); 

 The benefits of the proactive management of staff availability and how this impacted on the 

operational response and resolution of fires, staff; their families and, in the case of retained 

members of staff, their main employers. Page 44



 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(d) 
 

Denbighshire County Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Review of the Llantysilio Mountain Fire of the summer of 2018 

20 March 2019 

Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Service’s submission 

 

Session One - Review of the Response to the Fire 

 

Thursday 19th July  
The Countryside Service attended Llantysilio Mountain above Rhewl on the South 
West slopes of Moel Gamelin following reports from local resident of fire.  Fire 
Service were already in attendance.  
 
Countryside Service informed Natural Resources Wales (NRW).   
 
The Countryside Service have two fire foggers - specialist fire-fighting equipment 
specifically designed for heathland fires.  They work through high pressure hose 
systems that emit a fine mist over the fire to starve it of oxygen.  They are highly 
effective and use relatively low volumes of water so are ideal for working in remote 
areas.  They are mounted in the back of an ordinary pickup so are highly mobile.    
 
Both Fire Foggers were made available and staff worked alongside the Fire Service 
to try and bring the fire under control.     
 
The Countryside Service also have experience in managing heathland fires and use 
burning as a management technique on moorlands on the Clwydian Range and 
Llantysilio every year.  The Service have, over the years, offered training in heather 
burning as a management technique to students at Coleg Llysfasi and conservation 
agencies and have specialist equipment to support this activity.  
 
The Service continued to attended and work alongside the Fire Service throughout 
the week.      
 
Wednesday 25th July 
Although the fire appeared to be out on 24th July by the 25th it re-ignited and burned 
out of control. 
 
Friday 27th July  
The Fire Service requested fire breaks to be cut in order to slow the fire which had 
by now reached the slopes of Moel y Faen above the Horseshoe Pass.  The Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) arranged for NRW to attend to cut breaks under 
the direction of the Fire Service.  NRW teams attended with tractor mounted flail.  
    
In the evening as the fire advanced towards the Horseshoe Pass road the Fire 
Service requested breaks to be cut alongside the road – This required a tractor with 

Page 47



a side mounted flail which was provided through Denbighshire Highways  – Tim 
Towers.           
 
Rangers Service Staff continued to work along-side the fire service to try and bring 
the fire under control. 
 
 
Sunday 29th July 
Large areas of the fire now smouldering under-ground within the peat soil layer.  The 
Countryside Service continued to work with Fire Service to dampen down these 
areas until 1st August. 
 
General Comments 
Throughout the incident the Countryside Service offered its support to the Fire 
Service on a daily basis through the Incident Command Unit and were directed on 
site by the Fire Service as and when required.   There were no formal or direct lines 
of communication.  As the Incident Commander changed on a daily basis it was very 
difficult to maintain any continuity and often felt like we were starting again in offering 
and explaining what resources we had to offer.  This was particularly true between 
25th July and 29th July when the fire was at its height and things were progressing 
quickly.   
  
As stated above we have specialist heathland fire-fighting equipment and experience 
in tackling heathland fires.  We also have a thorough knowledge and experience of 
the terrain on Llantysilio Mountain.  We were not involved in discussions about the 
advancement of the fire or in decisions on its management.  
 
We remained in contact with Fire Service throughout August but no requests for 
operational support from the Countryside Service were received after 1st August.  
 

Assistance was also offered at the more recent fire above Glyndyfrdwy on 26th and 
27th February when a controlled burn got out of control.  Ranger teams attended with 
both fire foggers which proved effective in helping to bring the fire under control and 
ultimately putting it out.     

Page 48



Appendix 3(e) 
 

Denbighshire County Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Review of the Llantysilio Mountain Fire of the summer of 2018 

20 March 2019 
 
Denbighshire County Council’s Planning and Public Protection Service 
submission 
 
 

 
i) Air Quality - No specific additional air quality monitoring was undertaken 

as a result of the fire. We have NO2 (Nitrogen Dioxide) tubes located 
around Llangollen town centre which undertake routine air quality 
monitoring in that area. These did not show any changes during the period 
of the fire that we could attribute to the fire itself. No complaints relating to 
air quality issues as a result of the fire were received.  
 

ii) Private water Supplies - We had no contact/complaints from any private 
water supply users in the area relating to contamination issues. There 
were a few issues in relation to the dry weather but not specifically as a 
response to the fire. Denbighshire County Council (DCC) press office did 
advertise that residents could contact us for help and advice on securing 
an alternative supply via social media. 

 
iii) Mains Water Supplies - To the best of our knowledge, mains water 

supplies were not affected. If they had been Dŵr Cymru/Welsh Water 
would have been responsible for supplying emergency water supplies to 
affected households. WW/DW have not raised any issues with ourselves 
relating to supplies during this period.   

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(f) 

 

Report to the special meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee,  

20 March 2019 

Appendix relating to the response and interaction with Denbighshire County 

Council 

Written by Tim Towers – Highways Asset Manager 

 

Highways Response 

Highways’ first input into the fire and its associated issues came late in the afternoon 

of Friday July 27th 2018 via a request from Countryside Services colleagues for a flail 

mower to cut back bracken at the edge of the carriageway on the Horseshoe Pass. 

Fortunately we had a contractor in the Denbigh area at the time and we were able to 

divert him to the scene. 

Overnight and into the Saturday conditions worsened as the fire (and associated 

smoke) got closer to the main road and we were requested to put in a road closure 

so cones were put out and some rudimentary signing put in place. Again this request 

had come via Countryside Services staff who were our only liaison point with the Fire 

Service. 

During the day, and more especially into the evening, conditions worsened as the 

fire approached the Ponderosa and we were asked to ‘beef up’ the closure by putting 

in manned control points as people were still choosing to drive through the area. 

Considerable effort was put into making these arrangements but when we finally had 

operatives in place we were then informed that North wales Police had found the 

resources to be able to man the closure themselves so we stood down our crews. 

On the Sunday conditions had eased a little but the Fire Service still wanted a 

closure in place and manning it in the longer term was going to be unfeasible and, 

with just a few cones in place it was clear that road users would continue to abuse 

this and try to use the road thus putting themselves and fire service personnel in 

jeopardy as they were working off the carriageway in what was sometimes almost 

zero visibility due to the smoke. As a result we opted to collect water filled barriers 

from our depot and to deploy these to give a robust, physical deterrent with better 

defined signing too. 

In subsequent days, and depending on conditions, we deployed a combination of 

this physical barrier arrangement or single lane traffic control – which was mainly 

there to give a protection zone to fire personnel who were still having to work off the 

carriageway below the top layby. 

Page 51



Over time, pressure grew from businesses in the vicinity and in Llangollen itself to 

get the road open and it was difficult for us to communicate (via our normal 

processes) what was happening. 

Finally, around the 20th August the area was declared safe and we were able to 

remove all restrictions. 

Issues and Difficulties. 

As a department we are extremely used to both dealing with and managing 

emergency incidents involving the highway. In the past, during large scale events, 

our response has been in conjunction with North Wales Police (NWP) and invariably 

this has included on site liaison between officers from both us and NWP. On other 

occasions, such as widespread snow conditions we take control and follow set 

procedures and guidelines. In the case of the fire this proved almost impossible to 

achieve. 

In the first few days of the incident there was almost no direct contact between the 

lead officer from highways and the Fire Service Incident Control officer. On occasion 

Highways would phone the main control room at Rhyl Fire Station and be told who 

the on-site Officer was and their contact number would be provided but there was no 

handover at the end of the shift so continuity was very difficult to maintain. If it hadn’t 

been for the on-site presence of colleagues in Countryside Services then it is unlikely 

that the response from Highways would have been anywhere near adequate. 

About a week after the start of the fire a Command Post was set up in a layby and 

more formal meetings began to take place which enabled better planning, co-

ordination and communication but until then it was very disjointed and difficult for us 

to be engaged properly. 

Lessons Learned 

As stated above, we are very used to dealing with incidents involving the highway 

and the need for managing traffic but this was different, possibly because a formal  

Tactical Coordinating Group was not established which would have aided 

communication and insight. 

In a multi –agency de-brief that followed the incident we explained what resources 

we had available to us and North Wales Fire and Rescue Service were genuinely 

surprised how limited we were. The reason for their surprise was that they have seen 

we have been able to do in other circumstances such as flooding so they were under 

the impression that we could draw on a lot of help. The truth is not quite the same. In 

the winter we are geared up for long periods of bad weather and a substantial on call 

system with additional back up is put in place. In the summer this does not exist but 

if there is a forecast of bad weather such as thunderstorms and potential flooding 

then we do make ad-hoc short term arrangements. Normally there are only two out 

of hours operatives available to assist with small scale incidents.The crux here is that 

these events can be forecast – the fire was completely different. 

One good outcome from the lessons learned is that there is now a greater 

understanding of mutual capability and what is and isn’t achievable. 

Page 52



For us too there is always the duty we have to get roads open as soon as possible. 

Pressure builds on us when they remain closed for longer than the general public 

would perceive as necessary and irrespective of the underlying reason for the 

closure, the need to either open the road or explain the reasons for its ongoing 

closure builds. In this case there was the balance to be made between ensuring the 

safety of Fire Service personnel whilst also trying to keep traffic flowing – not least 

because up here the alternative routes for some vehicles is excessively long via 

Corwen. At times this onus on us as the Highway Authority seemed to get lost and 

there were frustrations due to us not being able to state what was going on or was 

foreseeably going to happen. This needs addressing in any future, similar event. 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(g) 
 

Report to the special meeting of Communities Scrutiny Committee, 

20 March 2019 

Role of Denbighshire County Council’s Communications Service during the 

Llantysilio Mountain Fire 

Written by Liz Grieve, Head of Customers, Communications & Marketing 
 
 

This statement summarises the role of Denbighshire County Council’s (DCC’s) 
Communications function during the Llantysilio Mountain Fire in 2018. 

 
 It is common practice and ‘business as usual’ for the Communications Teams of Public 

Sector organisations to work together in order to ensure correct messages are shared 
appropriately. 

 
 Where there is a particular incident a ‘Lead Organisation’ creates the messages and 

shares with partners so that the messages can be promoted across a number of media 
platforms and with particular stakeholders (for example local Councillors) 

 
 In the case of the Llantysilio Fire, the North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWF&RS) 

was considered the ‘Lead Organisation’, so the DCC Communications Team kept in 
close contact with the NWF&RS Press Team throughout the period, as well as with 
North Wales Police (NWP). 

 
 The Council’s main communications activity throughout the period in question was 

therefore largely limited to sharing updates from the emergency services about the 
need for people to keep away from the mountainside, as well as details of road 
closures 

 
 DCC’s Communications Team was also liaising as normal with DCC’s Highways 

Team to publish information about road closures. 

 

  In addition the DCC Communications team was on-standby to deal with the potential 

of a rest centre being activated, and had a prepared press statement, on an ‘if asked’ 

basis (if the rest centre was activated). 

 

 In addition to statements and information described above, we issued a press 

release on 29 July, praising the on-going emergency efforts: 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/July-2018/Council-praises-teams-

for-Llantysilio-firefighting-efforts.aspx 

 

 We also issued a number of updates to county councillors, as well as councillors 

representing Llangollen during the main activity. (See Appendix)  

Page 55

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/July-2018/Council-praises-teams-for-Llantysilio-firefighting-efforts.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/July-2018/Council-praises-teams-for-Llantysilio-firefighting-efforts.aspx


Appendix: Examples of messages sent to Councillors during the Llantysilio Fire 

Message issued to Llangollen County Councillors – 26 July 

Good morning, 

As you are aware, there has been a fire burning on Llantysilio Mountain since last Friday 

and our countryside service colleagues have been assisting firefighters in their efforts to 

contain and extinguish the fire.  The situation seems to have escalated over the last 12 

hours.  Our countryside teams have now deployed specialist equipment to assist the 

firefighters and are busy digging trenches that will act as fire breaks and aims to prevent the 

fire from spreading further.  

 

David Shiel is our contact in Countryside Service and we intend to issue a news release 

later today about the partnership efforts. 

 

We recognise this is a worrying time and we will do all we can as a Council to respond to 

the situation.  If you have any enquiries, please feel free to get in touch. 

 

Message issued 28 July 

Dear councillors,  

As you are aware, a fire has been burning at Llantysilio Mountain near the Horseshoe Pass 

for over a week and it intensified Thursday night into Friday.  Our countryside teams have 

been working with North Wales Fire and Rescue Service during this period. They are 

helping with the work of digging trenches, so that fire breaks can be created to try and 

prevent the fire from spreading. 

 

The county has well-prepared arrangements in please for dealing with major incidents and 

the Council is working closely with the Fire and Rescue Service, the lead agency in the 

response.  We are keeping in close contact with the incident commander who is managing 

the situation and we are proactively responding to requests for assistance.  Both the police 

and the fire and rescue service have advised people to stay away from the location and to 

leave the response to the agencies involved. That message has been relayed to the public 

via the media and social media and that advice still stands.  Our own press team are re-

sharing these messages. 

 

The Horseshoe Pass has also been closed as a precautionary measure. 

 

Social Services are also on stand-by to assist to open a rest centre, should any evacuations 

be necessary.  There are 12 properties in the nearby vicinity that may need to be 

evacuated. However that has not been necessary at this stage and the situation is being 

constantly monitored. 

 

We will keep you informed of any developments.  

Page 56



 

Message issued 29 July. 

Dear councillors, 

Here’s an updated position regarding the fire at Llantysilio Mountain. 

 

On Friday night, the escalating fire at Llantysilio Mountain near the Horseshoe Pass meant 

that the Council was placed on high alert to take immediate action if necessary. 

 

Fire crews, assisted by the Council’s countryside service teams have been making good 

progress in their efforts to extinguish the fire. The rain has certainly assisted the efforts.  

The crews are now focussing their efforts on tackling hot spots of fires. 

 

In light of the improving situation, the Council has been given permission to stand down its 

rest centre arrangements. However, the situation will be closely monitored and we will be 

informed if the need for a rest centre arises again. 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Appendix 3(h) 
1. Personal details 
 

Name:  Gwyn Rowlands Role:  Former Glastir Commons 
Development Officer 

Agency: The Horseshoe Pass Graziers’ 
Association 

Contact number: 01490 340500 

 
 
2.  In what capacity were you involved in the response to the incident? 
 

Please provide brief details of your role during the response. 
For background information: 
 
This Grazing Association covers that part of the common, as delinated on the attached 
map, the area between the two lines marked in green.  
There are 10 farming partnership members but only four graziers turn sheep onto the 
open mountain with two further graziers utilising enclosed areas of the common. 
 
2 The graziers’ role, apart from some initial contact in order to establish access points etc 
was limited. 
 

 

3. What key aspects of the response, from your own perspective, did not go well 
and why? 

 

 

3. As indicated in 2 there was little discussion with the graziers apart from initial contact 
in order to establish access points to the mountain and also directions to the fire position 
during the initial outbreak. 
 
It would appear that the fire service was reluctant to involve graziers in any way, where 
the graziers feel that they had a useful knowledge of the area, quite possibly better than 
anyone else. 
All offers of assistance were declined and advice given as to the unsuitability of certain 
areas for small appliance use was ignored. There were incidences of these vehicles 
overturning.  
Little or no discussions were held particularly with the graziers who had stock on the 
mountain at that time. 
 
Assistance offered: 
A local water supply, from a borehole. (possibly insufficient in the long term)  
The transport of water in agricultural tankers. 
The cutting of fire breaks using own machinery. 
 

Page 59



   

 

As regards the fire service role, it was felt that there was no continuity, in that with 
different shifts of personnel, then the supervisors had different ideas and policies, with 
no one person in control of works on the ground. 
 
It was also perceived that many had little or no experience of dealing with such incidents 
and insufficient care was taken to ensure that the initial outbreak, which was quickly 
brought under control, was completely extinguished before leaving the site. The fire 
reignited resulting in the subsequent major incident.  

 

 

4. What key aspects of the response from your own perspective went well and why? 

No meaningful comment was made in response to this question.  

 
5. What actions are required to improve future multi-agency response? 
 

 
 
Llantysilio Mountain is not alone as regards current habitat status and the overall lack of 
any management on similar sites across North Wales. 
 
In many areas livestock numbers have reduced for several reasons, political policy and 
economic and the general feeling is that this decline will continue. Grazier numbers are 
reducing, leading to reduced manpower available for the routine habitat management. As 
the habitat is not maintained, then accessibility for grazing is limited and the general 
husbandry, gathering etc becomes more difficult. 
 
The somewhat smaller Welsh Mountain lambs produced in these areas are currently out 
of fashion and generating less income than the larger lowland breeds, therefore less 
incentive to maintain flocks of pure Welsh Mountain and other hill breeds. 
  
The Association now feel that a cooperative policy should be drawn up and agreed 
between all parties with interests in managing this and other areas, namely Natural 
Resources Wales, Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB, the landowners and graziers. 
 
It is believed that a change of stance is required with a relaxation of some of the rules 
which have constrained any management. It is interesting to note that on the Berwyn, 
significant fire breaks are being put in place by NRW, this in addition to the small blocks 
of land previously controlled. 
The graziers would like to see the cutting or burning of firebreaks reintroduced. There is 
also the need to manage larger areas being controlled as in the past, this in addition to 
the more recent practice of managing only small blocks.  
 
Roadside verges also need to be increased in size, being wide enough to prevent any 
fires caused by passing motorists.  

Page 60



   

 

 
 

6.  Any other comments 
 

 
 
These findings follow a meeting held to discuss this questionnaire. 
 
I have tried to mention the more factual and salient points raised during the discussion, 
omitting many which may have been based upon rumour/hearsay etc. but there are 
strong feelings amongst the graziers that NRW have taken the responsibility of the 
management of the mountain away from hill farmers, who warned them of the potential 
dangers of their management but ignored this advice.   
 
As an aside, one rumour indicates that as the fire progressed then there was no urgency 
in extinguishing as when incidents extend beyond a certain period then the costs of 
control are directly met by the Welsh Government. 
 
Another rumour is that a Section 16 agreement was in place between the landowner and 
Natural Resources Wales in respect of Habitat Management. 
 
 
Reinstatement & Future Management 
 
A meeting attended by the graziers, the landowner, representatives of Natural 
Resources Wales and the AONB has been held recently together with additional 
meetings with individuals where these aspects have been discussed. As is often the 
case opinions are divided. 
 
Fortunately, nature has the ability to regenerate itself and there will be regrowth, at this 
stage, the level of success in terms of plant type etc is unknown. The extent of long-term 
damage caused to the soil structure is also unknown, this leading to erosion in its 
differing forms with the reduction in general soil fertility to sustain any regrowth of 
vegetation. 
 
Management of the common is difficult, but Llantysilio is not unique in this situation, the 
underlying factors affect commons throughout Wales. 
 
There is an underlying trend in the reduction of graziers utilising their rights to graze. 
This has led to a reduction in sheep numbers, an invaluable tool in habitat management. 
In tandem with this then the availability of labour to undertake any habitat management 
has also reduced. 
 
At present, due to many factors, economics being one, there is no indication of a 
significant change within this trend.  
 
There is also the perceived level of governance. Llantysilio Mountain along with many 
others is designated as a SSSI and SAC and therefore falls within the responsibility of 
Natural Resources Wales. Any form of habitat management here has to be authorised 
by them. The window of opportunity for burning/cutting etc is short, and there is a need 
to implement actions at relatively short notice when conditions are right. There is also 

Page 61



   

 

the concern with individuals, that if errors are made then they are open to the possibility 
of prosecution and financial penalties 
 
In order to improve the level of habitat management and help reduce the potential for fire 
outbreaks in future and lead to more effective control there must be greater cohesion 
between all parties, an awareness of each other’s requirements, working towards a 
common goal. 
 
In an ideal situation, the appointment of one person to develop a cohesive plan, 
endorsed by all interested parties and to subsequently put the proposals into effect. 
However, the funding for such a post will undoubtedly be limited. 
 
For general interest please see the following documents: 
 
The Heather and Grass Burning Code for Wales 2008:   
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwi
YiJP8gP3gAhXDuHEKHRSDAYkQFjABegQICRAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fbeta.gov.wal
es%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2018-01%2Fheather-and-grass-
burning-code.pdf&usg=AOvVaw03N41DyVPEmaaU_TpSXemd  
 
 
Upland Commons of South East Wales Natural Resources Management Plan: 
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8
&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2F
www.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAft
erBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-
Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-
cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C  
 

 
 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this questionnaire and participating in the 
Debrief process. 

Page 62

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwiYiJP8gP3gAhXDuHEKHRSDAYkQFjABegQICRAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fbeta.gov.wales%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2018-01%2Fheather-and-grass-burning-code.pdf&usg=AOvVaw03N41DyVPEmaaU_TpSXemd
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwiYiJP8gP3gAhXDuHEKHRSDAYkQFjABegQICRAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fbeta.gov.wales%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2018-01%2Fheather-and-grass-burning-code.pdf&usg=AOvVaw03N41DyVPEmaaU_TpSXemd
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwiYiJP8gP3gAhXDuHEKHRSDAYkQFjABegQICRAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fbeta.gov.wales%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2018-01%2Fheather-and-grass-burning-code.pdf&usg=AOvVaw03N41DyVPEmaaU_TpSXemd
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwiYiJP8gP3gAhXDuHEKHRSDAYkQFjABegQICRAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fbeta.gov.wales%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2018-01%2Fheather-and-grass-burning-code.pdf&usg=AOvVaw03N41DyVPEmaaU_TpSXemd
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAfterBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAfterBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAfterBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAfterBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAfterBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjh3f6Xgv3gAhX0QxUIHfEdA18QFjABegQIChAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitblaenavon.co.uk%2Fen%2FPublications%2FWorldHeritageSite%2FLookingAfterBlaenavon%2FUpland-Commons-of-South-East-Wales-Natural-Resources-Management-Plan-Non-technical-Summary.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2B-cn1tNgfvudJoPJKNR1C


Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(i) 
 

Llantysilio Statement - Llantysilio Mountain Fire 
 

Prepared on behalf of the Llantysilio Estate for the Denbighshire County 
Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee Meeting of 20th March 2019 

 
 

 
1. When the fire first took hold on Thursday 19th July it was felt that the fire 

brigade left site too early and that they should have stayed on site until the 
was properly contained as once the fire had been let into the bracken debris it 
was able to take hold rapidly from then on. 

 
2. Why wasn’t t the fire hit hard right at the outset to stop it in its tracks as once it 

was allowed to develop it spread very rapidly. 
 

3. Communication - there appeared to be a lack of communication between the 
change of fire commanders on site, many of whom were attending from far 
afield. I understand that a local farmer was on site for a substantial amount of 
time at the beginning and had to inform each commander of the directions 
and physically take them up to the mountain to give directions how to access 
the mountain, where to access the mountain and also show them the routes 
for water carriers etc. 

 
4. Local farmers were not allowed to help. Some offered toppers to cut fire 

breaks but these offers were refused possibly on the grounds of causing 
damage to the SSSI. The cutting of firebreaks ahead of the fire front could 
have substantially mitigated the losses that actually occurred. 

 
5. Training – It would appear that many of the fire fighters had little or no 

experience in dealing with mountain and heather fires.  Training should be 
extended to include recognition of the difference types of ground vegetation 
including bracken, (green bracken does not indicate that it is wet) as 
instructions were given by the fire brigade not to damp down areas of green 
bracken on the grounds that they were “wet”. Quite clearly in ignorance of the 
fact that there is always a substantial amount of dry bracken debris at ground 
level.  Training should also extend to the use of the all-terrain vehicles in fully 
laden conditions to avoid the roll-overs that occurred.  

 
6. The Llantysilio Estate would be agreeable to granting access. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Estates\Llantysilio\Llantysilio Mountain\Llantysilio Statement- Mountain Fire.docx 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(j) 

Llantysilio Mountain Fire 

Statement from Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water Statement - for the Denbighshire 

County Council’s Community Scrutiny Committee Meeting of 20th March 2019 

During the summer of 2018 Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) faced a sustained 

period of hot weather with very little rain. DCWW set up a Gold and Silver response 

to this incident which ran from the 27th June until the 22nd August. This response was 

required due to multiple water supply issues across Wales and Herefordshire.  

The two main areas of concern for the business in the north were Cwellyn Water 

Treatment Works in Waunfawr Caernarfon and Glascoed Water Treatment Works 

near Bodelwyddan. These two areas required continued tanker support by our 

Emergency Planning Logistics Team twenty four hours a day throughout this period 

to maintain supply for our customers.  

It must be stated that no customers were affected by loss of supply in the DCWW 

area over this time period. 

Due to this unprecedented support required over such a long period DCWW 

employed several contractors to assist with logistics. 

As a result of this exceptional weather a series of fires broke out across Wales. 

DCWW were also providing support to North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

(NWFRS) in several other locations including the Bethesda and Llŷn Peninsula 

areas. 

We were initially asked for support in the Llantysilio Mountain area with water supply 

on the 8th August 2018.  

This involved support from our North East Distribution Team in Kinmel Park 

Bodelwyddan with the provision of a tanker filling point in Llandegla, NGR 

SJ19782,51791. 

This fill point was determined to be ineffective at filling the tenders in an appropriate 

time. 

DCWW therefore provided assistance with three articulated tankers over a twenty 

four hour period which hold 25,000 litres each. These were used to fill fire tenders on 

site which allowed for a faster fill time for NWFRS.  

The tankers were situated on site in Llandegla for approximately four to five days 

and nights. Due to the volume of water being held on site in these tankers not all of 

the water was used so DCWW reduced the number of tankers to two per day. The 

artics were dispatched at 06.00 hrs and returned to the DCWW depot at 22.00hrs 

and were supplied by our contractors Mansell Davies and Sons. 

These tankers hold 30,000 litres each. 

This support continued until they were no longer required by NWFRS on or around 

the 20th Aug 2018. 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(k) 
 

Statement received from Hafren Dyfrdwy Water Company 
 
From enquiries made at Hafren Dyfrdwy it seems that this company did not have any 
involvement in the response to fight the Llantysilio Mountain fire.   
 
However, in Severn Trent (of which Hafren Dyfrdwy is a subsidiary) we did help out 
with fires on Staffordshire Moorland.  Some key learnings from that were as follows: 
 

 As it was hot and dry we had exceptionally high demand in significant parts of 
our network, so had the Fire and Rescue Service (FRS) taken water from their 
normal locations it would have meant customers going off supply.  It’s always 
best if the FRS contact us before drawing water from the network. 

 We had good liaison with the FRS about which parts of our treated water 
network had a reliable supply. 

 We arranged for them to draw water from our raw water sources rather than 
treated, as that didn’t put customer supplies at risk. 

 We were able to provide them with access to our reservoirs and we took 
water to their location for local storage in ponds & tanks.   

 Using raw water also meant we didn’t have to use portable water tankers, 
keeping them free for us to use to support customer supply issues. 

 We had managers attend the field command positions to liaise with the FRS 
commander during the most sensitive periods of the response. 

 Early engagement was good to help us plan. 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3(l) 

 
From Llantysilio Community Council 
 
The fire which engulfed Llantysilio Mountain for six weeks during the summer 
of 2018 caused catastrophic damage to the environment, threatened 
properties and significantly affected tourism in the area.  Whilst the efforts of 
the North Wales Fire Service were much appreciated, Llantysilio Community 
Council would like to ask why the policy of fighting the fire at the front line was 
employed rather than the early creation of mechanically dug fire breaks?  
This would have almost certainly contained the fire far earlier preventing 
untold damage.  

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Tŷ Cambria      29 Heol Casnewydd      Caerdydd       CF24 0TP 

Cambria House      29 Newport Road       Cardiff       CF24 0TP 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg 
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English 

       Appendix 4(a) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 
 
Denbighshire Scrutiny Committee 20.3.19. Afternoon Session.  
Evidence from Natural Resources Wales (NRW).   
NRW role in the Management of Mynydd Llantysilio. Past, present and future.  

 
1. Background.  

Mynydd Llantysilio is part of the Ruabon/Llantysilio Mountains and Minera Grasslands Site 
of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)  that was notified as an SSSI in 1991.   The 
designation as an SSSI recognises the National (UK) importance of the upland heath and 
blanket bog communities found on the mountain along with an assemblage of upland 
breeding birds species such as red grouse, black grouse and curlew.  
 
The majority of the SSSI is also part of the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC).  This European designation highlights the European 
importance of the heathland habitats found on Mynydd Llantysilio.  The whole area is 
within the AONB. 
 
Mynydd LLantysilio is a series of contiguous registered mostly unenclosed Common Land 
Units. The freehold is owned by four main landowners with a series of smaller landowners 
around the periphery of the mountain.  (Annex 1. Map showing the boundary of the SSSI 
on Mynydd Llantysilio). 
 
Grazing is essential for the management of the upland heathland communities on Mynydd 
Llantysilio.  
 
Ongoing management by small patch, controlled burning and mowing is also an essential 
part of the management of upland dry heath plant communities.  
 
Other management is also required e.g the control of bracken by either cutting or the 
application of a suitable herbicide as well as the control of gorse.  Gorse is a component of 
upland heathland, but large, dense stands of a monoculture of gorse hinder the 
management of the mountain.  NRW would wish to see gorse as part of a mosaic of 
different heathland plants.  
 
The control of scrub and trees into open areas of heathland is also an issue that needs 
addressing in some areas.  
 
During the last 20 tears the vast majority of Registered Common Land areas in Wales has 
seen a gradual decrease in the number of common land graziers turning stock on to the 
common, along with a decrease in the numbers wishing to undertake management of the 
vegetation.  
 

Our ref:  
Ffordd Gaer/Chester Road  
Bwcle/ Buckley 
Sir y Fflint/ Flintshire 
CH7 3AJ 
Ebost/Email: BethanBeech@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

Ffôn/Phone:  03000 653 3814 
 

Page 73



 
 

  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 2 of 5 

2. Past Management 
2a Section 16 Management Agreements on Mynydd Llantysilio 1998 -2013. 
Where land is an SSSI NRW can enter into a Management agreement with the owners or 
occupiers of land to fund the positive management of the special habitats within the 
site.  On Llantysilio this funding involved the cutting of heather and the control of bracken 
and gorse.  
 
A series of 5 year Management Agreements were in place with the Llantysilio Estate from 
1998 until the expiry of the last agreement in 2013.  Through this mechanism NRW were 
able to make payments to the common land graziers for the management of the 
vegetation.  
 
The amount of work undertaken through the Management Agreement is dependent on the 
number of common land graziers that are happy to undertake works. NRW can only 
encourage management through an agreement.  The Denbighshire Countryside Service 
have undertaken a lot of good work during the last 15 years to support and encourage 
common land graziers to carry out suitable management on the mountain.    This included 
the works carried out directly by the Heather and Hillforts Team, a 5 year project funded 
through the Heritage Lottery Fund.  Without this support less management would have 
occurred on the mountain to date.   
 
Below is a table summarising the number of graziers and total payments made by NRW for 
the years 2008-2012.  
 

Blwyddyn Year Faint o porwyr cafodd 

daliad am wneud gwaith 

Number of graziers  who 

received a payment. 

Cyfanswm taliadau 

Total payment 

2008 2 £336 

2009 3 £358.75 

2010 1 £136.5 

2011 5 £1333.30 

2012 3 £802.46 

 

 
2b Aerial photographs showing past heather management on Mynydd Llantysilio.  
 
For large upland sites  aerial photography is a very efficient and accurate way to record the 
heather management. 
 
NRW have digital copies of three flights, for the years; 
 
2009 
2013-14 
2013-17 
 

Page 74



 
 

  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 3 of 5 

Annex 2, 3 and 4 show the mountain for these three years at 1:25k.  
NRW can supply copies aerial photographs to the committee at a different scale (1:10K or 
other) if that would be helpful.   
 
 

3. Current Management  
 

3a Renewal of the management agreements.  
NRW are currently in discussion with the Estate about the renewal of these agreements 
and are also reviewing the payments levels for the carrying out of works on the mountain.  
  
3b Consents issued by NRW for the management Mynydd Llantysilio 2008 – present.  
Where land is a SSSI and owner or occupiers within the SSSI are charged with consulting 
NRW about any activities listed on the “Operations Likely to Damage the Special 
Interest”  for that site.   NRW then issues permission or Consent for these works to go 
ahead.  
 
Annex 5 is a table showing the number of Consents issues by NRW for Llantysilio 
mountain from 2008 to January 2019 where these relate to the management of the 
land.  NRW work with the landowners and common land graziers and ask for modifications 
to the proposed management where we consider this necessary.  We have no record of 
having refused Consent (permission) for any works on Mynydd LLantysilio.  
 
The last Assent on this list is to Denbighshire CC Highways and Environmental Services 
for the mowing of the road verges on the Horseshoe Pass.  This was issues in December 
2017 and is valid for 5 years.  A copy of this Assent is included in Annex 6.  
 
 
 

4. Future Management.  
 

4a. Future Management Agreements. 
NRW hopes to have Management Agreements in place with the 4 major landowners within 
the SSSI and also any other landowners who would wish to undertake positive 
management of their land.  Through these agreements NRW hope to work with the 
landowners and the common land graziers to actively manage the heathland on the 
mountain through mowing and controlled burning.  
 
4b NRW letting of a contract for an expert assessment of the fire damaged areas.  
NRW have gone out to tender to let a contract to secure the services of experts with past 
experience of the remediation of upland moorland damaged by fire.  The tendering 
process has taken longer than expected, but has now been completed.  The field work is 
planned for the next few months, with the report anticipated in early summer 2019.   
 
4c Changes to agricultural subsidy in Wales.  
The effects of Brexit on agricultural industry in Britain and particularly on the grazing of 
uplands is likely to significant.  It is likely that changes in trade will affect the market for 

Page 75



 
 

  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 4 of 5 

small welsh lambs that are produced in this environment.  Agriculture is devolved to 
Wales.  
 
NRW will need to work with the new policies of the Agricultural department of Welsh 
Government.  They are currently proposing a change to a payment system for public 
goods rather than agricultural production.  
  
 
 
 
Annex 1. Map of the Llantysilio section of the SSSI.  
Annex 2,3,4. Aerial photographs from 2009, 2013-14, 2013-17 
Annex 5 Table showing the number of Consents issues by NRW for Llantysilio mountain 
from 2008 to January 2019.  
Annex 6. Assent Issued December 2017  to DCC Highways for road verge mowing.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 
 

  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 
 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4a - Annex 1

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Llantyislio 2009 aerial photo

Notes

© Crown Copyright and database rights Ordnance Survey.Natural Resources Wales, 100019741, 2015. © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawl

cronfa ddata Arolwg Ordnans.Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, 100019741, 2015.This map is a user generated static output from an Internet

mapping site and is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.
British_National_Grid

Kilometers0.64 1.301.3

Legend

25,0001

P
age 81



P
age 82



Llantyislio 2009 aerial photo

Notes

© Crown Copyright and database rights Ordnance Survey.Natural Resources Wales, 100019741, 2015. © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawl

cronfa ddata Arolwg Ordnans.Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, 100019741, 2015.This map is a user generated static output from an Internet

mapping site and is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.
British_National_Grid

Kilometers0.64 1.301.3

Legend

25,0001

P
age 83



P
age 84



Llantyislio 2013 -17 aerial photo

Notes

© Crown Copyright and database rights Ordnance Survey.Natural Resources Wales, 100019741, 2015. © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawl

cronfa ddata Arolwg Ordnans.Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, 100019741, 2015.This map is a user generated static output from an Internet

mapping site and is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.
British_National_Grid

Kilometers0.64 1.301.3

Legend

25,0001

P
age 85



P
age 86



Appendix 4(a) Annex 5

Desig ID Consent ID Consent TypeIssue Date Operations Condition
SSSI 1079020 Consent 22-Apr-2008 Grazing, bracken control and scrub management as prescribed within the final Tir Gofal Management Plan (ref N/5/6520)as prepared by Libby Hughes 22nd of April 2008The area will be grazed in accordance with the stocking levels set out in the management plan.
SSSI 1080029 Consent 24-Apr-2008 Grazing, bracken control and scrub management as prescribed within the final Tir Gofal Management Plan (ref N/5/6275)as prepared by Joanne Mulligan 24th of April 2008CCW must be informed at least 2 weeks before bracken works is to take place
SSSI 1105970 Consent 30-Jun-2008 Control of encroaching bracken through aeerial spraying of Asuolux using Helicopter on Llantysilio mountain. Buffer Zones will be dictated by the Environment Agency, watercourses not under EA restictions will also be avoided to prevent any harm to other potentially rare fern species in the spray area.Buffer zones shall be created to avoid any water courses. The Buffer zones shall be dictated by the Environment Agency
SSSI 1106054 Consent 30-Jun-2008 Control of encoraching bracken through aerial spraying of Asuolux using a helicopter on Llantysilio Mountain. Buffer zones will be dictated by the Environment Agency and watercourses not under EA restirctions will also be avoided to prevent any harm to other potentially rare fern species in the spray areaAreas of continuos bracken with no other underlying vegetation shall be avoided. Only the bracken/heather interface shall be sprayed.
SSSI 1106090 Consent 04-Jul-2008 Control of encoraching bracken through aerial spraying of asuolux using a helicopter on Llantysilio Mountian. Buffer zones will be dictated by the Environment Agency and watercourses not under EA restrictions will also be avpided to prevent any harm to other potentially rare ferns species in the spray area. The BSBI have been consulted and have no records of rare species in the spray area.Areas of continuous bracken with no other underlying vegetation shall be avoided. Only the bracken/heather interface shall be sprayed.
SSSI 1106095 Consent 04-Jul-2008 Control of encroaching bracken through aerial spraying of Asulox using a helicopter on Llantysilio Mountain. Buffer zones will be dictated by the Environment Agency and watercourses not under EA restrictions will also be avoided to prevent any harm to other potenially rare fern species in the spray area. The BSBI have been consulted and have no records of rare species in the spray area.Areas of continuous bracken with no other underlying vegetation shall be avoided. Only the bracken/heather interface shall be sprayed.
SSSI 1288831 Consent 01-Sep-2009 carry out work to restore areas of heather moorland damaged by off road motorbike trespass on Llantysilio Mountain.Heather may be cut using a tractor and flail/topper from the area shown as a blue polygon on the associated plan.
SSSI 1350372 Consent 04-Mar-2010 To burn areas of European Gorse Ulex europeaus on areas as identified in a plan dated 22 February 2010.Burning shall only take place in small patches and shall range from 0.25ha in size but shall be no bigger than 1ha in size.
SSSI 1415258 Consent 25-Jun-2010 Areas where there is significant bracken encroachment are to be sprayed using the herbicide Asuolux. Asuolux wil be sprayed by MD Air services using a helicopter, and the work will take place at the end of July or beginning of August, weather depending, and should take no longer than 2 days.Work shall take place on the areas shown on the associated map, no other areas shall be sprayed.
SSSI 1415638 Consent 25-Jun-2010 Carry out work to restore areas of heather moorland damaged by off-road vehicle trespassOperations may commence from the date of this Consent and shall cease before the 31st March 2011
SSSI 1418783 Consent 02-Jul-2010 Areas where there is significant bracken encroachment are to be sprayed using the herbicide Asuolux. Asulox will be sprayed by MD air services using a helicopter, and the work will take place at the end of July or beginning of August, weather depending, and should take no longer than 2 days.The operation may commence from the date of this letter and shall cease by the end of August 2010.
SSSI 1470685 Consent 09-Nov-2010 T cut areas of dry heath where burning is not possible because of insufficient periods of suitable dry, windless weather.Before the commencement of works all persons permitted to carry out works (e.g all contractors and their employees) shall be made aware of the details of this Consent.
SSSI 1549133 Consent 23-Jun-2011 Areas wheere there is significant bracken encroachment are to be sprayed using the herbicide Asulox. Asulox will be sprayed by MD Air services from a helicopter, and the work will take place at the end of July r beginning of August, weather depending, and should take no longer than 2 days.This consent is valid from 23 June 2011 to 31 August 2011
SSSI 1636504 Consent 09-Jan-2012 To burn small patches of western gorse Ulex gallii within the areas edged yellow on the attached aerial image dated 6th January 2012.Burning shall omly take place in small patches and shall range from a quarter (0.25) hecate (ha) in size but shall be no bigger than one (1.00) ha in size. A total of no more than 2 ha shall be burnt.
SSSI 1662496 Consent 02-Mar-2012 T cut areas of dry heath where burning is not possible because of insufficient periods of suitable dry, windless weather.Only the areas shown on the attached map shall be burnt under this consent on CL84.
SSSI 1669523 Consent 22-Mar-2012 A tractor and flail will cut out a fire break prior to burning.This consent is valid from the date of this letter to 31st March 2012.
SSSI 1682221 Consent 01-May-2012 Aerial application of Asulox will be sprayed by MD Air Services from a helicopter. The work will take place at the end of July or begining of August weather depending and should take no longer than 2 days.This consent is valid from 1st May 2012 to 1st September 2012.
SSSI 2025513 Consent 04-Jul-2014 Grazing of Part of Llantysilio mountain ( within the areas shown on the enclosed Glastir Contract Extent Map 29/01/2014) with sheep to meet the requirement s of Glastir Option A Flexible Stocking rates (with up to 20% variation on monthly maxima)This consent is valid from 8 July 2014 for the term of your Glastir CLE contract.
SSSI 2073096 Consent 15-Dec-2014 Cutting of Western Gorse Ulex  gallii as shown in the areas on the attached map.This consent is valid from 15 December 2014 to 31st March 2015
SSSI 2096760 Consent 17-Feb-2015 Gorse management by burning on areas as shown on the attached aerial image dated 17 February 2015This consent is valid from 17 February 2015 to 31st March 2015.
SSSI 2096863 Consent 17-Feb-2015 To burn small patches of Western Gorse Ulex galii within the aeas edged yellow on the attached aerial image dated 17 February 2015This consent is valid from 17th February 2015 to 31st March 2015
SSSI 2096871 Consent 18-Feb-2015 To burn small patches of gorse within the areas edged yeloow on the attached aerial image dated 18 february 2015Burning shall only take place in small patches. The areas identified will not be burnt again in the next 10 years.
SSSI 2106972 Consent 02-Mar-2015 Burning of gorse as shown in the areas on the attached map.Burning shall only take place within the area shown edged yellow on the attached aerial image. Burning shall not be undertaken next to an area that has already been burnt in the last year or two.
SSSI 2199068 Consent 22-Feb-2016 Gorse management by burning  gorse (YELLOW area) and cutting gorse (BLUE area) on areas as shown on the enclosed aerial image.Cutting shall only take place within the area edged BLUE on the attached aerial image, with cutting to take place in August 2016 or September 2016.
SSSI 2202221 Consent 08-Mar-2016 To burn or cut small patches of Western Gorse Ulex galii within the areas edged yellow on the attached aerial imageThis consent is valid from 7th March 2016 to 31st March 2017
SSSI 2202316 Consent 20-Apr-2016 To cut or burn small patches of Western Gorse Ulex galii within the area edged yellow on the attached aerial imageThis consent is valid from 1October 2016 to 31st March 2017
SSSI 2231940 Consent 16-Mar-2017 Scrub and gorse management by burning and cutting in the areas shown purple and red on the enclosed mapBefore undertaking any burning or cutting, the vegetation should be checked for the presence of nesting birds. If birds are seen to be nest building or using a newst of any kind, burning or cutting should not take place on that area until the young have fledged
SSSI 2232857 Consent 10-Mar-2017 Gorse cutting on Cae Llywelyn and Gorse Burning on Ty Isa within the area shown hatched in black on the attached aerial image.Before undertaking any burning or cutting, the vegetation should be checked for the presence of nesting birds. If birds are seen to be nest building or using a nest of any kind, burning or cutting should not take place on that area until the young have fledged
SSSI 2234883 Consent 24-Mar-2017 A combination of small scale burns/cuts in the heathland that would not exceed 1ha in size in the areas marked in red on the map.Within the area marked in red any young trees and scrub of less than 8cm in diameter may be cut. Woody arisings will be removed from the SSSI/SAC and disposed of or burnt outside of the site.
SSSI 2258938 Assent 28H 13-Dec-2017 To widen the extent of cutting of the verge either side of the A542 around the Horseshoe Pass (See attached map) to an approximate width of up to 2m.This assent is valid until 31 March 2022

Date 2008-Present 27 Vegetation Management

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ebost/Email ian.hughes@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk  www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 

Gweithrediadau Gogledd Chanolbarth Cymru/Operations North and Mid Wales Chester Road, Buckley, Flintshire CH7 3AJ  

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg 
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English 

 
 
Mr James Dean 
Highways & Environmental Services 
Denbighshire County Council 
Lon Parcwr Depot 
Ruthin 
DENBIGHSHIRE 
LL15 1NA 

Assent Ref No: 2258938 
Our Ref: SJ24.1(B) 

 
 
 

13 December 2017 

 
Dear Mr Dean 
 
ASSENT BY THE NATURAL RESOURCES BODY FOR WALES (“NATURAL 
RESOURCES WALES”) TO CARRY OUT OPERATIONS IDENTIFIED IN A NOTICE 
DATED 31 OCTOBER 2017 UNDER SECTION 28H OF THE WILDLIFE AND 
COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981, AS SUBSTITUTED 
 
DESIGNATED SITES: 
RUABON/LLANTYSILIO MOUNTAINS AND MINERA - SITE OF SPECIAL SCIENTIFIC 
INTEREST 
BERWYN A MYNYDDOEDD DE CLWYD / BERWYN AND SOUTH CLWYD MOUNTAINS - 
SPECIAL AREA OF CONSERVATION 
 
Please find enclosed assent to carry out specified work affecting the above named sites.  
This assent allows you to carry out the operations in the way described, and fulfils the legal 
requirement. You must give written notice if you intend to alter these operations in any way, 
or wish to carry out any further work. 
 
Note that this assent only relates to the above mentioned legislation – other authorisations 
may be required. 
 
Yours sincerely 

                                                          
David Drewett 
 
Arbenigwr Cadwraeth Technegol / Canolbarth Cymru  
Conservation Technical Specialist / Mid Wales 

 
Encs: copy of notice and map 
 

Page 89



In this document “Natural Resources Wales” (NRW) means the Natural Resources Body for Wales established by article 3 of 
the Natural Resources Body for Wales (Establishment) Order 2012. The Natural Resources Body for Wales (Functions) 
Order 2013 transferred the relevant functions of the Countryside Council for Wales, and functions of the Environment 
Agency and the Forestry Commission in Wales to the Natural Resources Body for Wales. 
 

CYFOETH NATURIOL CYMRU  

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES                       

 
Assent ref no: 2258938 
Our ref: SJ24.1(B) 
 
ASSENT TO CARRY OUT OPERATIONS ON LAND AFFECTING THE FOLLOWING SITES: 
RUABON/LLANTYSILIO MOUNTAINS AND MINERA - SITE OF SPECIAL SCIENTIFIC 
INTEREST; BERWYN A MYNYDDOEDD DE CLWYD / BERWYN AND SOUTH CLWYD 
MOUNTAINS - SPECIAL AREA OF CONSERVATION UNDER SECTION 28H OF THE 
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981, AS SUBSTITUTED 
 
The Natural Resources Body for Wales (“Natural Resources Wales”) hereby agrees that,  
 
Highways & Environmental Services 
Denbighshire County Council 
Lon Parcwr Depot 
Ruthin 
DENBIGHSHIRE 
LL15 1NA 
 
as a section 28G authority with respect to the above sites, may carry out the operation(s) 
specified below in the manner prescribed: 
 
To widen the extent of cutting of the verge either side of the A542 around the 
Horseshoe Pass (See attached map) to an approximate width of up to 2m. 
  
Works to be undertaken between 1st October and 31st March in any given year and to 
be undertaken as specified in submitted notice dated 31 October 2017. 
 
THE ABOVE OPERATIONS CAN ONLY BE CARRIED OUT UNDER THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS 
  
Condition: 
This assent is valid until 31 March 2022 
  
Reason: 
To time limit the consent to allow an opportunity to review 
  
Condition: 
All equipment including boots and vehicles will be clean and dry before being used on 
the SSSI/SAC 
  
Reason: 
Biosecurity measures to reduce the risk of the spread of non naive species 
 
This notice only relates to the above mentioned legislation. It does not release you from any 
obligations to obtain approval under other legislation or the General Law. If proposed works 
involve development, you must also apply for planning permission to the Local Authority. 
Some proposals may require the landowner’s permission or other authorisations. 

Page 90



In this document “Natural Resources Wales” (NRW) means the Natural Resources Body for Wales established by article 3 of 
the Natural Resources Body for Wales (Establishment) Order 2012. The Natural Resources Body for Wales (Functions) 
Order 2013 transferred the relevant functions of the Countryside Council for Wales, and functions of the Environment 
Agency and the Forestry Commission in Wales to the Natural Resources Body for Wales. 
 

 
Date: 13 December 2017 

Signed:  
 
David Drewett 
 
Arbenigwr Cadwraeth Technegol / Canolbarth Cymru  
Conservation Technical Specialist / Mid Wales 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



In this document “Natural Resources Wales” (NRW) means the Natural Resources Body for Wales established by article 3 of 
the Natural Resources Body for Wales (Establishment) Order 2012. The Natural Resources Body for Wales (Functions) 
Order 2013 transferred the relevant functions of the Countryside Council for Wales, and functions of the Environment 
Agency and the Forestry Commission in Wales to the Natural Resources Body for Wales. 
 

Copy of Notice and location map. 

 

 

Page 92



In this document “Natural Resources Wales” (NRW) means the Natural Resources Body for Wales established by article 3 of 
the Natural Resources Body for Wales (Establishment) Order 2012. The Natural Resources Body for Wales (Functions) 
Order 2013 transferred the relevant functions of the Countryside Council for Wales, and functions of the Environment 
Agency and the Forestry Commission in Wales to the Natural Resources Body for Wales. 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 93



In this document “Natural Resources Wales” (NRW) means the Natural Resources Body for Wales established by article 3 of 
the Natural Resources Body for Wales (Establishment) Order 2012. The Natural Resources Body for Wales (Functions) 
Order 2013 transferred the relevant functions of the Countryside Council for Wales, and functions of the Environment 
Agency and the Forestry Commission in Wales to the Natural Resources Body for Wales. 
 

 

Page 94



Appendix 4(b) 
 

Denbighshire County Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Review of the Llantysilio Mountain Fire of the summer of 2018 

20 March 2019 

Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Service’s submission 

 

Session Two - Review of land management arrangements.   
 
Background 
Heather moorland is a special feature of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB 
and in global terms is one of our rarest habitats.  As such it is designated a Site of 
Special Scientific Interest and Special Area of Conservation.   Heather moorland is 
also identified as a priority habitat under Denbighshire’s Corporate Plan.    
 
The majority of heather moorland in Denbighshire, including Llantysilio Mountain is 
Common Land.  This means that although it has an owner a number of farmers have 
rights to graze sheep.  Sheep grazing and the management associated with it are 
essential for maintaining these areas in good condition.   Traditional management 
includes a combination of cutting and burning in order to encourage new growth.  
Controlled burning is often favoured over cutting because the heat and smoke 
stimulates the germination of heather and bilberry seed so regeneration is more 
effective.  In Wales, it is only legal to burn between 1st October and 31st March    
 
Over the last 50 years or so there has been a significant reduction in the agricultural 
management of heathland areas and it has been increasingly difficult to maintain hill 
flocks in these areas.   
 
Heather and Hillforts Project 2005 - 2012 
The Heather and Hillforts project was a 5 year Heritage lottery funded project which 
focused on the moorlands of the Clwydian Range and Llantysilio Mountain.    
 
The project recognised that moorlands in the UK are in decline as a result of 
significant barriers to sustainable management.  The project appointed a Moorland 
Field Officer who worked with the farming communities to identify and overcome the 
specific barriers to retaining these areas as part of the agricultural system and 
establish long term management programmes that would benefit upland grazing. 
 
Significant work was undertaken to reduce the extent of bracken through aerial 
spraying, as well as work with landowners and graziers to improve the condition of 
heathland.   
 
Over the 5 years the project delivered the following: 
 

 Mapped the condition of vegetation across the Clwydian Range and Llantysilio 
Mountain in 2005 and 2010. 

 Carried out programmes of burning and cutting with graziers and provided 
equipment for heathland management. 

Page 95



 Carried out aerial bracken spraying in order to improve heathland areas for 
grazing.  

 Provided demonstration and training in management techniques. 

 Worked with the Fire Service to promote responsible burning and management 
programmes in order to reduce fuel load and vulnerability to fire. 

 Worked with Llysfasi College Agriculture Students to promote and teach 
heathland management techniques. 

 
The Moorland Field Officer also had a role in working with the graziers to get 
necessary Special Area of Conservation (SAC) Consents in place for works, 
mapping and reporting on management carried out and ensuring that burning plans 
and management plans were in place.  These requirements often presented 
significant barriers to work being carried out so the Moorland Field Officer was able 
to help overcome these. 
 
Work since 2012       
The Heather and Hillforts Project finished in 2012.  Since then there has been no 
Moorland Field Officer in post.   
 
However, the AONB has continued where possible to support graziers wishing to 
carry out works on Llantysilio Mountain and to assist graziers with the NRW consent 
process. 
 
Where possible practical support with burning and cutting has been offered to 
graziers through the area Ranger Team, often working with Agriculture students from 
Llysfasi College.      
 
Since 2009 the AONB working with graziers have carried out:  

71 acres of heather burning across Llantysilio Mountain 
23 acres of heather cutting  
A further 73 acres of cutting has been carried out with the RSBP.  

 
 
Looking forward 
NRW are in the process of commissioning a detailed assessment of the damage to 
the mountain following the fire. 
 
In some areas where the fire has burnt into the peat layers the soil structure and the 
seed stock has been destroyed.  It is likely that these areas will be very slow to 
recover.  In these areas further soil loss through wind and water run off may become 
an issue. 
     
In other areas it is likely that bracken and gorse will spread rapidly into burnt areas of 
the mountain as both plants thrive after burning and out compete other vegetation.  
This will present additional challenges to re-establishing grazing on the mountain. 
In some areas the heather and bilberry will recover over the next few seasons.        
  
Meeting with the Graziers   
The AONB and NRW met with the graziers on 11th February this year to discuss 
opportunities and challenges for management on the mountain following the fire.  

Page 96



 
NRW are working on putting a Management Agreement in place with the landowners 
on Llantysilio that will provide a framework for payments to graziers for agreed 
management works.  
 
Obvious immediate issues were identified in stocking of the burned and damaged 
areas.  NRW agreed that they would not be looking for any reduction in stocking but 
it was recognised that there may be issues with stock moving away from their 
traditional hefts in these areas in search of suitable grazing. 
 
One of the issues identified was the difficulty of dealing with gorse and scrub on 
steep slopes where it is not possible to gain access with a tractor and where slopes 
are too steep to burn safely.   
 
With areas like this in mind the AONB has secured funding through Cadwyn Clwyd 
to trail and demonstrate a Robo-Flail – a driverless flail mower capable of working on 
very steep slopes.  Over the last few weeks a number of demonstrations events for 
farmers and land managers have been held across the Clwydian Range and Dee 
Valley including Llantysilio and the Horseshoe Pass.  
 
Where time and resources allow the Countryside Service will continue to offer 
support to graziers who want to carry out management on Llantysilio.   
 
It is worth noting that Denbighshire County Council own significant areas of heather 
moorland at Moel Famau and Ranger teams are also engaged in similar 
management across these areas.   
 
     

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(c) 

DENBIGHSHIRE CC COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

REVIEW OF LLANTYSILIO MOUNTAIN FIRE SUMMER 2018 

STATEMENT ON BEHALF OF PAUL TATE OWNER OF PART OF THE 

MOUNTAIN 

 

1.  Paul Tate is the freehold owner of part of the mountain, some 485 ha of 

common land being the Eastern Section of the Mountain. 

 

2. Mr Tate recognises the common grazing rights of the registered graziers who 

each have the right to graze set numbers of livestock for no charge. 

 

3. The area has SSSI designation and there is a detailed list of potentially 

damaging operations. 

 

4. The area is common land and hence the general public have the right to roam 

across the whole area owned. 

 

5. Mr Tate has, in the past, entered into a S.15 management agreement with the 

then Countryside Council for Wales now NRW and readily complied with the 

Councils requests, data gathering, black grouse counting annually and 

restrictions. 

 

6. Mr Tate did not have the resources to undertake controlled burning but 

consented to graziers and interested parties undertaking agreed habitat 

management works being heather, bracken and gorse control. The agreement 

also had provision for the authorities to undertake this management work. 

 

7. The vegetation on the area opposite the Ponderosa Café has become 

denatured through intense vehicle use and parking and it is considered that 

some control or restriction of this may be beneficial to the management of the 

mountain. 

 

8. Mr Tate would be willing to work with the authorities in future management. 

 

 

 

 

 

R COLLINS, CARTER JONAS 12.3.19 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(d) 

 
From Llantysilio Community Council 
 
The fire which engulfed Llantysilio Mountain for six weeks during the summer 
of 2018 caused catastrophic damage to the environment, threatened 
properties and significantly affected tourism in the area.  We ask whether 
Policies relating to the protection of the environment and landscape actually 
hindered the containment of this catastrophic fire which has totally and 
irreversibly scarred our landscape? 

 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	3 REVIEW OF THE SUMMER 2018 LLANTYSILIO MOUNTAIN FIRE
	Report - App 1 Approx Extent of Fire 2018
	Report - App 2 NWLRF Debrief
	App 3a NWC-REPS report
	App 3b NRW Evidence  Session 1
	App 3b NRW Evidence Session 1 - Annex 1
	App 3b NRW Evidence  Session 1 - Annex 2
	App 3b NRW Evidence  Session 1 - Annex 3
	App 3c NWFRS Statement - Session 1
	App 3d DCC Countryside Services report - Session 1
	App 3e DCC PPP report
	App 3f DCC Highways report
	App 3g DCC CCM report
	App 3h Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association submission Session 1 & 2
	App 3h annex Horseshoe Pass Grazing Association Submission Session 1 & 2 App 1
	App 3i Llantysilio Estate Statement Session 1
	App 3j Dwr Cymru Statement Session 1
	App 3k - Hafren Dyfrdwy
	App 3l - Llantysilio CC
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2 - Annex 1
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2 -Annex 2
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2 -Annex 3
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2 -Annex 4
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2 - Annex 5
	App 4a NRW Statement Session 2 - Annex 6
	App 4b DCC Countryside Services report - Session 2
	App 4c Llantysilio Mountain - Statement from one of the owners of the mountain
	App 4d - Llantysilio CC




